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YVONNE SMITH SEGARS

Public Defender

Office of the Public Defender
llate Section

31 Clinton Street, Sth Floor

P.O. Box 46003

Newark, New Jersey 07101

(973) 877-1200

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
APPELLATE DIVISION
IND. NO(S).: 80-08-4225

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, 5 CRIMINAL ACTION
Plaintiff-Respondent, : NOTICE OF APPEAL
FILED
v. L a ~
Mlaurzm

ALBERTO SCABONE, ]
FEB 1 62005
Defendant -Appellant. :

............... o

1 eax

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the defendant, Alberto Scabone,

confined at New Jersey State Pri=eon, Second & Cass Streets, P.O.

Box 861, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0861 appeals to this Court from

the final Order denying defendant's motion to correct illegal

sentence entered on January 3, 2005 in the Superior Court, Law

Division, Essex County, by the Honorable Joseph C. Cassini.
YVONNE SMITH SEGARS

Public Defender
Attorney for Defendant-Appellant

v,

BY: y Py

R
Assistant Deputy Public Defender
Intake Unit

The undersigned certifies that the requirements of R. 2:5-3(a) have
been conrlhd with by ordering the transcript(s) on February 16,
2005 indicated on the accompanying transcript request form(s) and

that a copy of this Notice has been mail to the tribunal
designated above. > /{/(.



ORDER PREPARED BY
THE COURT

SUPERIOR COUT OF NEW JERSEY
ESSEX COUNTY: LAW DIVISION
State of New Jersey, CRIMINAL
Plaintiff
Indictment No.: 4225-08-80
Alberto Scabone, ORDER
——— Defendant
This matter having come before the Court on a Motion for C ion of Illegal S
filed pro se by Defendant, Alberto Scabone, on Septemb 22, 2004, and the Court having
carefully reviewed Defendant’s file, has d ined that Defendant’s motion was originally

heard on September 28, 2004 by the Honorable Eugene J. Codey, Jr., PJ.C.V. The Court,
therein, concluded, that pursuant to Rule 3:22-5, the prior adjudication, upon the merits of any
ground for relief, is conclusive. The Court further concluded that the defendant’s motion failed
to comply with the five year Statute of Limitations specified by Rule 3:22-12, and that the
sentence imposed was in complete compliance with New Jersey Statutes, as fully supported by
uwrecotd.mdinoonfommwilhmefnuumﬂecmdind\ejuryvetdict.mduudminedby
defendant in his testimony.

r~D
IT IS ON THIS 3 day of January, 2005, ORDERED that the Defendant’s Motion

be denied.

DATED: o/f03/0s /&

e Joseph C. Cassini, Il



CHAMBERS
JOSEPH C. CASSINI, Il
JunGe

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
CRIMINAL DIVISION
ESSEX VICINAGE

. —
January 3, 2005

Alberto Scabone #258208/904520-A
New Jersey State Prison

P.O. Box 861

Trenton, NJ 08625

Cc: Olivia C. Smith, Esq.

Deputy Public Dafendu Essex Region
31 Clinton Street, 5* Floor

Newark, New Jersey 7102

Cc: Paula T. Dow, Esq,

Acting Prosecutor

Essex County Prosecutor’s Office
Essex County Courts Bldg.
Newark, New Jersey 07102 | .

Re:  State v. Alberto Scabone

Ind. No.: 80-08-04225-1

Dear Mr. Scabone:

Please be advised that I have reviewed your Motion for correction of illegal sentence with
respect to the above matter.

A review of your file indicates that the Honorable Eugene J. Codey, Jr., PJ.C.V.
previously decided this matter on September 28, 2004. The Court in that decision, concluded
that your prior adjndicaﬁop is conclusive pursuant to Rule 3:22-5, and that the sentence imposed
Wumoqmplew;cooldmwmmwlmyswummdmem In addition, the Court
unueedyouunlmunry 14, 1994, and your motion was filed on September 23, 2004. As such,

the Court found that your petition failed to comply with the five (5) year Statute of Limitations

NEW COURT BUILDING
NEWARK, NEW JERSEY 07103



specified by Rule 3:22-12. The Court further determined that the sentence was, also, in
mqm;fwuuﬂwedindnjwyvudim.mdudmimdbyyouinm
testimony.

Accordingly, your motion is hereby denied. Enclosed a copy of the Honorable Eugene J.
Codey, Jr., P.J.C.V.'s decision with respect to this matter and a copy of this Court’s Order.




¢ " JPERIOR COURT OF NEW:. 3iSEY
s ESSEX VICINAGE

EUGENE J. CODEY,JR. NEWARK, NEW JERSEY 07102
PRESIDING JUDGE

September 28, 2004

Alberto Scabone

#258208

New Jersey State Prison f
Post Office Box 861

Trenton New Jersey 08625

Re: State vs. Alberto Scabone
Ind.#4225-08-80

Dear Mr. Scabone:

You were found guilty of the passion/provocation manslaughter of Monica Scabone, your
wife, of the purposeful and knowing i..urders of Yannet Estevez, your sister-in-law, and Norma
Estevez, mm«-in-lnw.mdofmonddemm. You were sentenced by me to an
aggregate prison term of eighty years with a forty-year parole ineligibility period,: a ten-year
mmwimlﬁve-yeumledhqwiﬁerfordn, ion/p ion laughter; a
thirty-year prison term with a fifteen-year parole ineligibility period for each of the two murders;
and a ten-year prison term with a five-year parole ineligibility period for the arson. All terms
were to run consecutively.

In your direct appeal, you contested the legality of your sentence. The conviction and the
legality of your sentence was affirmed in an unreported opinion dated November 14, 1995 (A-
3498-93T4). The Supreme Court denied certification on January 31, 1996, State v. Scabone,
143 N.J, 330 (1996).

Pursuant to Rule 3:22-5, this prior adjudication, upon the merits of any ground for relief,
is conclusive.

In accordance with Rule 3:22-2 (C), a petition challenging the imposition of a sentence in
uemofwod\uwiun«inwcudmwi(hununmmmbyllwmwbemedno
more than ﬁn(i)yunaﬂanndiﬁonofthennmmﬁlmhw You were
sentenced by me on 1/14/94, and, thus, your petition ﬁledmtﬁhweomplywilhdnﬁve .
(5) year Statute of Limitations specified by Rule 3:22-12.

“TTY/TTD dial 711 for New Jorsey Relay”

B
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3 additionally, fi. hat the sentence | imposed was in complete compliance with New
/’grnnu.:u is

ﬁulywbyﬂnmm The sentence was, also,

in conformance
wmhlmunﬂnhdlndnjuywct.muwmmdbyminm

testimony.

Very truly yours,

EUGENE J. CODEY, JR,
PICV.

C: Norman Menz, Esq.

“TTY/TTD dial 711 e Now Jecsey Relay*



THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
ESSEX COUNTY
Vs. LAW DIVISION-CRIMINAL
INDICTMENT #4225-8-80
ACCUSATION
COMPLAINT#

ORDER

(OO
DORON

The Court having considered the testimony presented and arguments of

ALBERTO SCABONE

counsel for the State and counsel for the defendant, and good cause having been shown:

It is on this 28" day of September , 2004 ORDERED that the Motion
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ORDER PREPARED BY ‘
THE COURT CRIMINAL RECORDS

SUPERIOR COUT OF NEW JERSEY
ESSEX COUNTY: LAW DIVISION

State of New Jersey, CRIMINAL

Plaintiff

Indictment No.: 4225-08-80

Alberto Scabone, ORDER

 Deferdant TRUE COPY

This matter having come before the Coust on a Motion for C: ion of Illegal S
filed pro se by Defendant, Alberto Scab on September 22, 2004, and the Court having
fully reviewed Defendant’s file, has d ined that Defendant’s motion was originally

heard on September 28, 2004 by the Honorable Eugene J. Codey, Jr., P.J.C.V. The Court,
therein, concluded, that pursuant to Rule 3:22-5, the prior adjudication, upon the merits of any
ground for relief, is conclusive. The Court further concluded that the defendant’s motion failed
to comply with the five year Statute of Limitations specified by Rule 3:22-12, and that the
posed was in pl li

the record, and in conformance with the facts as reflected in the jury verdict, and as admitted by
defendant in his testimony.

with New Jersey Statutes, as fully supported by

D
IT IS ON THIS _3_ day of January, 2005, ORDERED that the Defendant’s Motion
be denied.

DATED: o/fo3/os
orable Joseph C. Cassini, Il
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ALBERTO SCABONE #250208/904520-A
New Jersey State Prison
P.0. Box 861
= Trenton, New Jersey 08625
Defendant-Movant, Pro Se

Presestly Coafimed ) 1 W
Septesber 13, 2004 -\ . i
CRININAL DIVISION MANAGER'S OFFICE
ior Court of New Jersey A
Law Division-Essex County R

Essex County Court l-lldtag
S0 West Market Street
Nevark, New Jersey 07102
Re: | ¥ 3 X s
Indictmeat No. 4225-08-00
Dear Sir/Madam:

Please find enclosed an original and one (1) copy of the
following documents for filing:

1. MNotice of Motion to Correct an Illegal Sentence,
(Pursuant to R. 33122-12);

2, Letter Brief and Appendix in Support of Motion
(Pursuant to R. 2:16-2(b));

3. Proposed Order Denying/Granting
(Pursuant to R. 3:1-4(a)); and

4. Certificate of Service
(Pursuant to R, 1:5-3).

Would you be kind enough to mark an extra copy of this
cover letter as “FILED", M return to me in the enclosed
self-add a If there are any deficiencies,
please advise me at the abovo ‘mentioned address.

Respectfully submitted,

rto
Defendant-Pro Se

cc: Essex County Prosecutor Office
As/rile.



Hon. Eugene J. Codey, J.8.C.

ALBERTO SCABONE #238208-8SB1#904520-A
New Jersey State Prison

P O, Box 861

Trenton, Wev Jersey 08625
Defendaat-Novant, Pro $e

IRRSENTLY COWPINgD SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION-ESSEX COUNTY

INDICTHENT NO.-4325-08-80

STATE OF NEVW JERSEY, 3
Plaintiff-Respondent, H
H
- VS, - NOTICE OF NOTION TO CORRECTY
] AR ILLEGAL SENTENCE PURSUANT

70 R, 3-22-12.
ALBERTO SCABONE, 3

Defendant-Movant, :

y tor
Essex County Court Building
Newark, Newv Jersey 07102

WOTICE IS NEREDY given that on the _.__.... day of

oo _._, 2004, or as soon thereafter as may be heard, the

dersigned defend » shall move before the Superior

Court of Wew Jersey, Hon. Eugene J. Codey, Jr., presiding for
entry of the following relief as to the above captioned matter:
1. An ORDER correcting the illegal sentence in the above
ptioned P to R, 3:22-12,

In support of this motion reliance is placed upon the
attached Letter Brief and Appendix made a part hereof.
\ Respectfully Submitted,
L R SRR
MOVANT, PRO SE
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AT
ALBERTO SCABOME §258208-831#940520-A
New Jersey u-n Prison
P. O. Box 861
Trenton, Newv Jersey 08625

Defendant-Movant, Pro Se

September 13, 2004

BONORABLE BUGENE J. CODEY, JR. J.8.C.
Superior Court of New Jersey
Wewark, New Jersey 07102
Re: State vs. Alberto Scabome
Notioa to Correct am Il Seateace
Essex County Iad. #
Dear Judge Codey:

Please accept this letter-brief in lieu of a more formal
brief in pport of
an illegal sentence relative to indictment nuaber 4225-08-80.

Aafand. o~

's motion to correct

Defendant was coavicted of two counts of surder, one count
of manslaughter and one count of second-degree arson. The
sentencing court, in imposing consecutive terms for the murder
(30 years with a 15-year parole disqualifier for each) the
manslaughter (10 years with a five-year parole disqualifier),
and the second-degree arson (10 years wvith a five-year parole
disqualifier) the maximus possible sentence allowed by law
in 1981,



BUGENE J, CODSY, JR. J.8.C. Page Two

At the time of the off » defendant, as a convicted
aurdered wvas subject to the following: (1) to a term of 30
yoars of which the person must serve 15 years before being
eligible for parole, or (2) as in a crime of the first degree
wmtmnxmmtu-m.nmotmuntm
shall be 30 years.” M,J,8,A, 2C:11-3(b). Defendant received
the maximum ters. (8737-1 to 4).' That sentence 1s illegal
and must be vacated,

In addition to the maximum t: for der, defend:

received the maximum term of 10 years with a 5 year parole bar
on the second degree conviction of arson » to run consecutive
to the murder, (8737-24 to 38-2). Judge Codey did not merged
none of the convictions with the surder comvictions,
(8T38-4 to 7). As discussed below, like the murder sentence,
the term imposed on the arson comviction is also illegal and
must be vacated.

“8T" refers to defendant®

s ng t ipts made
4 part hereof in defendant's appendix marked 8T1 to 39,



SONORABLE EUGENE J. CODSY, JR. J.S.C. Page Three
Superior Court of New Jersey

Bssex Courts Bldg.

S0 West Market Street

Nevark, New Jersey 07102

The sentencing court found one mitigating factor: factor
(1) Nr. Scabone has no prior record. However, the sentencing
court found three aggravating factors: factor (3) the risk
that defendant might commit another offense; factor (6) the
Seriousness of the offense; and factor (9) the need for
deterrence. (8731-3 to 32-14).

None of the aggravating factors were reflected in the jury
verdict nor admitted by the defendant. Rather, they were all
found by the judge, by a preponderance of the evidence. See
State L 11, 117 N.J. 210, 215 (1989) (sentencing factors
need only be found by a preponderance of the evidence). The
judge determined that the aggravating factors outweighed the
mitigating, and, as noted, imposed the maximum term of life,
and the mandatory 30-year parole bar.

On June 24, 2004, the United States Suprese Court decided
Blakely v, washingtom, 124 S.Ct. 2531 (2004), which involves
the Washington State ing sch The defend. in Blakely
having pleaded guilty to a class B felony, faced a statutory

presusptive range of 49-53 moaths and a maximum term of 120

h The encing judge found aggravating facts, and
imposed 90 months. 1d. at 2535, Although the sentence was less
than the maximua ters, the Supreme Court found it

unconstitutional,



BONORABLE BUGENE J. CODRY, JR. J.8.C. Page Pour
Superior Court of New Jersey

Essex County Courts Bldg.

50 west Market Street

Nevark, New Jersey 07102

The Court held that, under the Sixth Amendment, the jury,
rather than the judge, had to find beyond a le doubt
any fact that 1§ d the t above the presusptive
49-53 months. ]d. at 2537.

The Suprese Court pointed out that its holding in Blakely
vas governed by its earlier decision in Apprendi_v,_Mew_Jersey,
530 U.S. 466, 490 (200), which held:

“Other than the fact of a prior conmviction,
any fact that in:nmc m m-!ty for

a crise beyond the pr ibed Yy
saxisum must be submitted to a jury, and
d b le doubt.”

pr Y a

The Blakely Court concluded that, for Apprendi purposes,
the relevant statutory maximum "is the maximum sentence a judge
lely. .

may impose = d = 8
jugy.. ct_or_ tted by the. " 1d. at 2537,

The Court noted that, under Washington law, the judge could
not have i d the t beyond the presumptive 49-53
months based solely on the facts the defendant admitted in the
guilty plea. In order to i the t » the judge had
to take into account facts other than those which were used
to P the dard range. 1d. at 2537-38. The Court
observed, "Had the judge imp d the [enh d) t solely
on the basis of the plea, he would have been reversed.” 1d.

at 2538; United States_w, Pooker, ... P.3d .__., 2004 WL 1535858




BONORABLE BUGENE J. CODSY, JR. J.8.C. Page Pive
Superior Court of New Jersey

Essex County Courts Bldg,
$0 West Market Street
Newark, New Jersey 07102

at *4 (7th Cir. July 16, 2004) federal seatencing guildlines
itutional imsof: as “they limit defendants' right to
jury asd to the le-doubt dard®); Usited _States
¥p-Croxford, ___. P.Supp.2d ____, 2004 WL 1521560 (D. Utah
July 7, 2004) (sase), adhered to by Umited_gtates_x, Croxford,
sc== PeSupp.2d ____, 2004 WL 1551564 (D. Utah July 12, 2004).
Similarly, if the judge had ordered defendant to serve
the maxisum life term without making any factual findings, this
Court would have had to te the Ses, State_.w,
Glover, 230 N.J. Super. 333, 344 (App. Div. 1988) (affirming
life term for murder on grouna that there was asple support

for aggravating factors judge relied on); State_.w, _Serrooe,
95 N.J. 23, 25 (1983), citing State v, Maguire, 84 N.J. 508,

$26 (1980), (life sentence for murder could be isposed upon
consideration of aggravating factors); see also State v, Joth,
95 N.J. 334, 364 (1984) (revieving court must determine whether
cited aggravating and mitigating f. s are b d on pet .
credible evidence).

Sentencing under the Criminal Code is governed by the

principle of uniformity with the goal of avoiding disparity.
$ee State v, Brimage, 153 N.J. 1, 22-23 (1998); $tate v, Vasguez,
129 n.J. 189, 203 (1992). Accordingly, like the Washington
systes at issue in Blakely, the Code sets forth sentencing



BONORABLE BUGENE J. CODEY, JR. J.8.C. Page Six
Superior Court of New Jersey

Essex County Courts Bldg.

50 West Market Street

Nevark, New.Jersey 07102

ranges and presumptive terms and requires courts to weigh
specified aggravating and mitigating factors before imposing
sentence above or below the presusptive tera, and also spells
out the circumstances in vhich courts can impose extended terms
and periods of parole ineligibility. Ses e,gq, 2C:43-6; 2C343-7;
2C344-1a, Db, £(1). While the Code does not prescribe a
presumptive tera for murder, 2C:44-1(f), the statutory minimum
term of 30 years is, effectively, the presumptive term for
murder: the court could not increase defendant's sentence beyond
30 years based solely on the jury verdict.

The carjacking statute pri.ides a useful analogy. Like
surder, carjacking has a minimum and maximum term covering a
vide range, but no presumptive term. In $tate_x,_3adoyan, 290
N.J. Super. 280, 290 (App. Div. 1996), the Appellate court
emphasized the need for a presusptive tera "to guide imposition
of a carjacking beyond the d. y =mini * and

to serve as "a benchmark which say be adjusted upward or downward
depending on (the court's) evaluation and balancing of the
aggravating and mitigating factors.® Accordingly, the court
identified the minimum sentence as the presumptive tera for
carjacking, and required the sentencing judge to make findings
of fact to justify a sentence above the presusptive. 1d; accozd
State_.v,. Parardi, 369 N.J. Super. 445 (App. Div. 2004); State



HONORABLE EUGENE J. CODEY, JR. J.8.C. Page Seven
Superior Court of New Jersey

Essex County Courts Bldg.

S0 West Market Street

Nevark, New Jersey 07102

¥p_Neary, 323 N.J. Super. 157 (App. Div. 1999). In short, the
30-year ainimum is the presumptive term for surder, and the
sentencing judge must find aggravating factors in order to
increase the sentence above 30 years. Because all three
aggravating factors the judge relied on to increase defendant's
sentence were found by the judge by a preponderance of the
evidence, and not by the jury beyond reasonable doubt, the eighty
year tera with a forty year parole bar isposed upon defendant
violates his state and federal conmstitutional rights to trial
by jury and due process of lav, and therefore, must be reversed.

Us8,_Const, amends. VI, XIV; M,J, _Const, art I, %Y 1, 10.
Defendant wvas also convicted of the d-deg harg

of arson. The Code expressly states that the presumptive teram
for a second-degree offense is seven years. 2C:44 1£(1)(c).
Defendant received a consecutive maximum term of 10 years with
.a discretionary five year period of parole ineligibility.
(8T737-24 to 38-3).

In imposing the maximum term, the judge relied on
aggravating factors, (3), (6) and (9), the same factors he

cited in support of his decision to ispose the maximum term
on the murder conviction. None of those factors were reflected
in the jury’s verdict or admitted by defendant. Thus, for the

same reason that imposition of the maximum tera on the arson




J. CODEY, JR. J.8.C. Page Bight
it
Newark, New Jersey 07102

conviction violates defendant's state and federal constitutional
rights to trial by jury and due process, and must be vacated,

Furthermore, under MN,J.8,A, 2C344-6b, the only wvay a
discretiosary parole bar may be imposed is if the sentencing
judge is “"clearly convinced” that the aggravating circumstances
“substantially ocutweigh® the mitigating. See State.w, Bayless,
114 8.0, 169, 179 (1989); State v, uilliams, 310 N.J. Super.
92, 98 (App. Div. 1998)(even when imposing a sandatory extended
term, a trial court must not 4 T a di i 'Y parole
disqualifier without first finding that the aggravating factors

bst ially outweigh the mitigating factors).

In imposing a mini teras pursuant to 2C:43-6b, the
sentencing court shall specifically place on the record the
aggravating factors ... which justify the imposition of a minimum
term," 2C:44-1£(1), and its “reasons for imposing sentence,
including ... consideration of the defendant's eligibility
for release under the lav governing parole ..." State_v,_Xruse,
105 N.J. 354, 359 (1987).

In addition to its findings on the various aggravating
and mitigating factors, the sentencing court must “describe
the balancing process™ and "explain how it determined defendant's

sentence.” State v, ZKruse, 105 N.J. at 360, See also State
¥a_Sainz, 107 N.J. 283, 290 (1987) (rejecting State's argument



NONORABLE EUGENE J. CODRY, JR. J.8.C. Page Nine

ket Street
Nevark, Nev Jersey 07102

that three year mandatory mini % d an isplicit
finding and weighing of aggravating and mitigating factors;®
resentencing ordered); Vg e, 102 N.J. 350 (1985)
(mem, ) (remanded for ing b “the sentencing

transcript does not reveal an articulation of balancing of
aggravating and mitigating factors required to establish the
base or parole ineligibility terams"); State_u,_ Pessix, 309 N.J.
Super. 126, 129-30 (App. Div. 1998)(describing the “three-step
process” that must be followed before imposing a mandatory
ainisum t ;3 and ding b of the trial court's

failure to "sufficently articu'=te on the record its reasons
for imposing a period of parole ineligibility...").

Thus, just as the “"standard” sentence in Blakely could
not be exceeded without a finding of certain factors in
aggravation, the sentence in this case cannot exceed the
presumptive nor can a parole bar be imposed without such
findings, See Ring v, Arizoea, 536 U.S. 584, 612, 122 S.Ct,
2428, 2445 (2002)(Scalia, J., concurring) (“[M]hersver
(aggravating] factors exist they must be subject to the usual
requiresents of the common law, and to the requirement enshrined
in our Constitution, in criminal cases: they must be found by
the jury beyond a reasonable doubt.”)(Emphasis added).



BONORABLE EUGENE J. CODRY, JR. J.8.C. Page Ten
Superior Court of New Jersey

Essex County Courts Bldg.

SO West Market Street

Nevark, New Jersey 07102

Additionally, in Nev Jersey the decision of vhether or
not to 1 I\ or ntencing is based

on judicially established guidelines rather than by statute.?

In State_v,_.varbough, 100 N.J. 627 (1985), cert denied,

475 U.8. 104 (1986) the Court established the following criteria
to be followed when sentencing for sultiple offenses at the
same time:

(1) there can be no free crime . . .
(2) the reasons for imposing either a

ive or rent should be
Separately stated in the sentencing decision;
(3) ...the sentencing court should
(consider) ... v“sther or not:
(a) the crimes and their objectives were
predoainantly independent of each other;
(b) the crimes involved separate acts of
violence or threats of violence;
(c) the crimes were committed at different
times or separate places, rather than being
committed so closely in time as to indicate a
single period of aberrant behavior;
(d) any of the crimes involved multiple
victims; (and)
(@) the convictions for which the sentences
are to be 1 d are H
(4) there can be no double counting of
aggravating factors;
(5) successive terms for the same offense
should not ordinarily be equal to the
punishaent for the first offense; and

2C312-13; 2C:13-1c(2); 2C335-4.1; 2C:39-4.1d all
require sentence be served consecutive. ¥ As 2C344-
5(3),(c), £(2)(3), (h) and (1) require the sentence served
eouoe:ttvoly, unless the court in its discretion concludes
othervise.



BONORABLE EUGENE J. CODEY, JR. J.8.C. Page Eleven
Superior Court of New Jersey

Essex County Courts Bldg.

S0 West Market Street

Nevark, New Jersey 07102

(6) there should be an overall limit on the

cumulation of tive t for

multiple off not to d the sum of

the longest terms (including an extended term

if eligible) that could bo’upo.od for the

tvo most serious offenses.
Id., 100 N.J. at 643-44 (footnote omitted). The Yarbough
criteria has been carefully enforced and where a sentencing
court has failed to follow theam, court's of reviev have reversed
or remanded for nev sentencing proceedings. See State__v._Carey,

168 N.J. 413, 424 (2001)("when a trial court fails to give proper

reasons for imposing ive t at a single sentencing
proceedings, ordinarily a remand should be required for
resentencing™); State_y._Miller, 108 N.J. 112, 122 (1987)(Court
found it “vas compelled” to resand for resentencing where trial
court had failed to give P tat of for
imposing consecutive sentences); State_wv,_Cook, 330 N.J. Super.
3

The sixth factor was repealed in L. 1993, ¢ 223. This
enactment left the remainder of the Yarbough criterla untouched,
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395, 423 (App. Div. 2000)(a remand is ... necessary for the
sentencing judge to give a parat tat: of for
the imposition of consecutive terms to enable us to determine
wvhether the imposition of tive vas a proper
exercise of discretion®).

Indeed, not too long ago, our P Court add d the

/ ive tencing decision thusly: “A trial
judge’s discretion resains guided by the seminal precepts set
forth in State_v,_Yarbough, 100 N.J. 627 (1985)." State.v. Ellis,
346 N.J. Super. 583, 590 (App. Div.) aff'd 174 N.J. 535 (2002).

Since the Yarboygh guidelines are of judicial creation
and have the force of law, Blakely applies to this sentencing
decision as well, C ly, 4 h as the Yarbough
guidelines require a judge to make factual findings beyond the
facts found by the jury or admitted by the defendant, imposition
Sl a consecutive teram violates the right to trial by jury.

Clearly, under Blakely, Apprendi and Ring, a defendant
has a right to have a jury, not a judge, make the aggravating
factor findings (other than prior record), including the findings

in support of imposing consecutive terms, and that right is
violated when, as here, a judge makes the findings instead,
and consecutive terms exceeding a flat presumptive term are

imposed, Accordingly, Blakely, Apprendi, and Ring, limit
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defendant's exposure to the “statutory maximum,” which in his
case is the presumptive seventy years with a thirty-five year
parole bar for his murder coanvictions, and a consecutive maximua
term of ten year with a five year parole bar for ‘his arson
conviction,
CONCLUSION

PFor the reasons stated within defendant's Letter-Brief,
the Court should vacant his convictions. Alternatively, for
the reasons stated within the Letter-Brief the Court must merge
his convictions under Count One, Three amd PFour into Count
Two for the reasons stated here, it must find his sentences
unconstitutional and either modify them or remand his case for
a nev sentencing procedings.

Respectfully submitted,

MOVANT, BRO SE
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Scabone - sentence 2
THE COURT: We’'re here on sentence day on State cf New

Jersey v. Alberto Scabone on indictment number 80-8-4225.

Could we just get the formal appearance of all the
parties, including the interpreter for the Public Defender’'s
Office who is present with us today who was alsoApreiént
throughout the entire trial and proceeding for Mr. Scabone.

MR. HUTH: Your Honor, Thomas C. Huth, Essex County
Prosecutor’s Office, homicide squad.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Kevin A. McLaughlin from the Office
of the Public Defender, Essex Region on behalf of Mr. Scabone.

THE INTERPRETER: Sara Cohen, Spanish interpreter.

THE COURT: Mr. McLaughlin, have you had a chance to
review the presentence report? I know when we last left there
was a motion that ‘was pending to have me recuse myself from
these proceedings. Also there was a number of letters that
were sent in, and I don’t know if Mr. Huth was been kind enough
to get you copies, from a number of the family members of the
victims’ family. There’s a stack that I received just in this
morning’s mail, some from Martha Gonzalez, Anna Gonzalez. I
don’t know if you got copies of all the letters.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, I have not, but if ic
please the Court, I'd like to address the motion first, if I
may.

THE COURT: Go right ahead.

MR. McCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, as I know the Court is




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Scabone - sentence 3
aware, Counsel has the highest respect for the integrity and

honesty of this Court. And bluntly, it pains me to have to
repew this motion. But notwithstanding that, I have to renew
the motion, your Honor.

o I believe that this trial was conducted in i.
scrupulously fair manner. It would be to powers greater than I
to determine whether it was done without legal error either on
my part or your part or Mr. Huth’'s part. But,.I am going to
renew my application that the Court recuse itself for the
purpose of this sentence.

To recap briefly, your Honor, at the conclusion of the
trial, after the verdict was taken, the Court tock an
opportunity to address the jury with regard to several issues.
One of those issues had to do with the admission in evidence of
the photograph of Monica Scabone at the party. And I was
concerned that the Court felt compelled to explain the
circumstances that may or may not have surrounded one, the
admission of that photo into evidence and two, what may have
happened or may not have happened at or about the time that the
photograph was taken.

But, of more concern was the Court’s assurance to the
jury, at that time, that Mr. Scabone would be receiving, and'
I'm paraphrasing, Judge, I’'ll rely on the record for any appeal
purposes, you did assure the jury that, and again by

paraphrase, if you had any say in the matter, that Mr. Scabore
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would be receiving the maximum Sentence for each of the

offenses.

I was concerned at the time, your Honor, that the
Court had pre-judged this matter prior to receiving the
presentence investigation report, that the Courc.my,'h'nva
gotten caught up in the emotion and the excitement of the
trial. I asked, at that time, that the Court consider recusing
itself from imposing sentence in this matter. And again, so
it’s clear, your Honor, I have the utmost respect for this
Court, for both its integrity and its dignity and its honesty.

I know that the Court always strives to impose
sentence or a ruling in accordance with the law. But, I am
concerned that the Court may have become unwittingly
emotionally caught up in this matter. And, I wonder if it is
perhaps not better, under all of the circumstances, even if
it’s only to avoid the appearance of a problem, that th‘e Court
recuse itself from imposing this sentence. I'm going to ask
the Court to do that and to recommend that the sentence be
transferred either to the assignment judge for reassignment or
this Court being the executive judge for the floor perhaps to
be reassigned to another judge here on the floor,

THE COURT: Mr. Huth.

MR. HUTH: Just briefly. I would object to said
motion primarily because the comments made by the Court, ar;d I

want the record to be clear on this, were made after, nymber
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Scabone - sentence 5
one, the verdict came out. Number two, after the jury was

polled as to a unanimous verdict. And number three, after the
CQQrt gave its discharging instructions to the jury. It was at
that point, once the verdict was "sealed" that the Court made
comments to the jurors and told the jurors certain cyfngl in
the case that they were not allowed to hear during the course
of the deliberation.

I find nothing wrong with that. Number one is that I
think the jury should be entitled to hear certain things that
were withheld from them during the course of their
deliberations, after they have deliberated and rendered a
verdict. So, there has been no prejudice, whatsoever, to the
jury. Number two, I can’t understand how your Honor could
possibly prejudice himself by voicing opinions that he had
after hearing 2 weeks of tescimony of this trial.

This trial was one of the most emotional ordeals I
have ever been involved in. And to just sit there and to
pretend that it doesn’'t effect you is inhuman. You voiced
concerns or strike that, you voiced your emotions. I find
nothing wrong with that. In the meantime you have had an
opportunity to look at a presentence report. You will have an
opportunity to listen to Counsel and possibly tke defendant if
he wishes to talk and you will have an opportunity to listen to
family members. And I am confident that the Court can make its

decision based upon that.
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I just don’t think that you can sit up there in a

vacuum and listen and go through an ordeal like this and not
hézo some opinion and not have some feeling about it. I do not
think that will cloud your judgment regarding today'’s
sentencing.

It was a very emotional trial. It was a very
upsetting trial for everyone involved. And I kind of thought
that your comments were appropriate. It's because of that,
Judge, I don’‘t think you should recuse yourself.

THE COURT: Okay. When Mr. McLaughlin did in fact
make the motion, I did check up on the statutes and the court
rule that does apply. And just for purposes of an appellate
tribunal reviewing this proceeding, because I'm not going to
recuse myself, I did, in fact, review the court rules,
including but not limited to rule 1:12-1. And some of the
applicable case law including but not limited to State vg.
courtney which is cited at 199 N.J. Super. at page 368. And, I
see absolutely no reason, either in case law or in the court
rules, for me to recuse myself from these proceedings.

I sort of try to make sure that everybody gets a fair
trial in this Court and I think that’'s why the attorneys like
to try trials up here. And many of the rules that were
presented during the course of the case I know upset the
Prosecutor’s Office because a lot of them were very, very

favorable to Mr. Scabone, especially including a number of the
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Scabone - sentence 7
photographs and a number of evidence regarding prior beatings

and abuse by Mr. Scabone upon Mrs. Scabone that were withheld
{;;m the jury.

I always try to let my jurors know reasons for delays
in.trial and what went on in there absences at -%de yirl. I
think jury members, after a verdict is in fact sealed, is
entitled to know a little bit about the case, what went on and
certain reasons for certain things that were done during the
course of the case. And that'’'s what I atempted to do in this
case.

So, I fully intend to go forward with the sentencing
today. Mr. McLaughlin has preserved the rights of Mr. Scabone
today in the.cvont that an appellate tribunal disagrees with my
philosophy. And assuming it will be upheld, as of today, I
have no intention of having this case be reassigned to another
judge because I don‘t think anything was done improper in this
case.

Mr. McLaughlin, I know we initially discussed about
some of the letters. I don’t know if there was a whole sheaf
of documents that came in in today’s mail. I don’t know if you
had a chance, all from family members. Again every one of the

letters was very emotionally written, all asking for the

4 h

maximum custodial sentence to be imp on Mr.

In fairness to you, I don’‘t know if you need a chance

to look at each and every letter. They basically asked the
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Court not to shave any time off of Mr. Scabone's possible

exposure and sentence him to the maximum under the statute that
was in effect back when this incident occurred, which was the
old homicide statute. Subsequent to the date of the offense,
the statute was amended to a much higher degree 9{ cgﬁolure.
But Mr. Scabone’s coming under the old statute.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, I had not had an
opportunity to review the letters but I can indicate to the
Court that it’s not necessary for me to review them prior to
the imposition of sentence. I would appreciate the opportunity
to review them perhaps after the sentence proceeding. But
counsel does not feel that there could be anything in the
letters that would provide the basis for some legal objection.
Family members are absolutely entitled to express their
feelings. And in a case such as this, one would expect those
feelings to be strong and emotional.

I would appreciate the opportunity to review them but
it's not necessary that we review them prior to the imposition
of sentence.

THE COURT: No problem. We’ll make you up a complete
xeroxed set of documents. And, again, none of the documents
are in mitigation of Mr. Scabone’'s sentence, but to the
opposite. They’re all asking for the maximum sentence to be
imposed upon Mr. Scabone.

MR. HUTH: Judge, just for the record, I told family
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members if they wish to write letters to send them directly to

tPf Court. I must have not seen the substance of those letters
either. So if I had them I would have given them to Mr.
McLaughlin.

THE COURT: No problem. Truthfully :ho.maiyﬁnn juse
came before we came out. I just got them and they were for Mr.
Scabone so I brought them out with me.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: I‘'ve had an opportunity to review the
presentence investigation report with Mr. Scabone. We find it
to be accurate and sufficient for the purpose of sentence. I
would make note of the following correction, a minor one at
that, your Honor. On page 1 of the section entitled Uniform
Defendant Intake which is approximately the seventh page in the
report, the report is pagenated, at least the copy that I have,
Mr. Scabone’s birth date is indicated as being 10/5/53 there.
On the face page of the report is the true birthdate of 11/5/S4
as indicated.

THE COURT: Note that correction.

MR. McLAUGHLIN: Other than that, we find the report
to be accurate sufficient for the purpose of sentence.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. McLaughlin, any statements
you’d like to make on behalf of Mr. Scabone? Anything Mr.
Scabone himself would like the Court to hear?

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, I would like to address

the Court, if I may, with regard to the imposition of sentence.
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THE COURT: Sure.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, I would note first that
{;;pite of the commentary during the course of trial and prior
to the trial, no one has seen fit to adduce any evidence thac
Mr. Scabone has ever been accused of or convicted of jhy
criminal conduct anywhere outside of the United States. The
prior adult criminal history indicates a charge with an arrest
date of March 31, 1980 that was dismissed one month, I'm sorry,
the next day, I apologize, according to the report and then
this matter appears.

There’s no indication of any juvenile history. And as
nearly as I can tell, there’'s no evidence of any problems with
the law outside of the United States. There may well be, but I
don’t have competent documentation to that effect and nor does
the Court. So, preliminarily I'm addressing that matter. Mr.
Scabone has no prior indictable convictions. Has no prior
convictions of any kind.

I should state, your Honor, that in the text of the
report, Mr. Scabone indicates that he is, in fact, innocent.
And, in essence, re-alleges that which he alleged in his
testimony at trial. I do not, in any way, want the Court to
feel that I am in any way, that he is, in any way, coming away
from his assertion of innocence. I have to address the Court
based on the conviction that was returned by this jury.

If I make references to acts committed to Mr. Scabone,
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attributed to Mr. Scabone, those will be obviously because :he

jury has convicted him of those. I don't want anyone to feel
that I have in any way conceded that he is in fact guilty of
these offenses. But, Mr. Scabone understands, as does counsel,
he_is convicted of these offenses and he will be.seniénced on
them.

Given that, your Honor, I think that we should move zo
what is the appropriate sentence. Obviously one of the first
things that we would want to deal with in the imposition of the
sentence under circumstances such as this is the double
counting of aggravating factors. One of the problems, if you
will, with convictions for homicide and its subspecies is that
those convictici.s presume the death of the victim. And,
obviously the Court is aware that the seriousness of the harm
is simply not something that we can consider when the verdict
is some form of homicide.

I wanted to be clear to all persons, there are 3
people dead. Mr. Scabone stands convicted of causing those
deaths. I think the most salient point to be considered in
imposing sentence is what were the circumstances surrounding
the commission of the crime. Again, assuming for the purpose
of this argument that Mr. Scabone committed the crimes, the
State, during the trial, through Miss Camacho and through
attempts to characterize circumstantial evidence, I‘'m sure, is

going to urge upon the Court that Mr. Scabone, cold-ﬁloodedly
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and without feeling of any kind, executed Norma and Yanette.

That’s not so, your Honor. That is simply not so. It
flies in the face of the proofs in this case. It flies in the
face of the verdict in count 1. Your Honor, the State can’t
have it both ways, either Mr. Scabone was subject .to bursts of
temper during which he lost control, or he’s a cold-blooded
murderer, one or the other.

Now, they got their conviction based on theory, number
1. That's how they got it, that he would fly into a rage and
abuse his wife. And in point of fact he flew into a rage on
this date and ultimately caused her dep:h. I guess the State
will urge that he then had some period of time to consider what
he would do next. I should indicate to the Court that there's
no proof of that whatsocever. It would appear that the jury
agreed the killing of Monica Scabone was done in the heat of
passion pursuant to adequate provocation. And I think that in
some large measure we have to accept that part of the verdict
as well.

They say it happened that way, Judge. I don’t say it.
Mr. Huth doesn’t say it. The jury says it. Heat of passicn,
adequate provocation.

Now, do the subsequent deaths, the ones for which the
jury returned verdicts of murder, do we characterize those as
being committed after a sufficient period of time had passed to

allow Mr. Scabone to rationally think through what had
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happened? I suggest, your Honor, that the excitement of che
one killing and the irrationality that in fact caused it to
QZEur in the first instance, was carried over. He should never
have killed Monica. That’'s obvious.

Obviously he should never have killed Yanett: or
Norma. But, to assume that the one was done in the heat of
passion and the other one was done upon cold passion, it's jusc
an assumption. It‘s a continuation, obviously a continuation
of agitated state that the jury felt it was not appropriate to
convict of passion provocation manslaughter. We accept that
verdict. But, I've read Mr. Huth’'s sentence memorandum, Judge.
He wants you to give 4 consecutive nose to nose sentences. He
wants you to give 30 with 15, 30 with 15, that’s 60 with 30.

Then he’d like you to give 10 with 5 to count one,
that would be 70 with 35, and then we got a second degree
arson. What the heck, we’'ll throw in another 10 with 5 for
that. That would be 80 with 40. A genteel sufficiency under
anybody’s criteria. But, your Honor, that fails to take into

what h d. Simply running these sentences

PP

consecutive will satisfy the blood lust that runs in all of our
veins to some extent or another.
It would certainly, I don’t think it would satisfy the

family bers of the d d victims. But it’s the maximum

that you can give and that's what they’d have to live with.

And certainly that’s what they want you to give. But, I think
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your Honor needs to take a longer look at this incident. This

was one incident. This was not a series of incidents. This
was one circumstance from the moment the knife was wielded
against Monica Scabone -- if in fact she was the first person
killed, I think we have to accept that based on yhu: ihe jury
verdict is -- until che time that the fire was set.

If you choose to take a series of snap shots then it's
very easy to impose consecutive sentences. It's simple. These
are discreet events. Your Honor, I don’t think the Court
believes that these are discreet events. I think the Court
should be well satisfied that this was something that took
place, at least in Mr. Scabone’s mind, all at once in a jumble.
I'm not looking to excuse the taking of human life. It‘'s
inexcusable at any level and we are without power to seek the
appropriate retribution.

Your Honor, I'm not a particularly religious person
but I do believe that that power rests only in one place and
it’s not here in this courtroom. A higher authority will
ultimately judge Mr. Scabone. We have to do our job now.

I am going to urge upon the Court that the Court see
this for what it really was, which is one ongoing course of
conduct. One incident all provoked by the same, unjultitiablé
perhaps, but the same rage.

Mr. Scabone indicates in the presentence report that

he suffers from depression. He believes his mental health to
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be poor. There’'s certainly evidence in the trial testimony

that others believed that he was in need of psychiatric help.
There's evidence that he was confined to a psychiatric
institution. I think there’'s evidence that he escaped from
that institution. To characterize Mr. Scabone ag.bcgig a
dangerous psychotic on the one hand and a cool dispassionate
killer in the other, would be for the simple expedience of
giving him the maximum, Judge. It wouldn’'t reflect what is
true. It’s either one or the other.

The real truth is, your Honor, that these sentences
should be run concurrent to one another and that presents a
problem for us, for the Court, for the litigants. You see,
we’'ve gotten used to the new 2C, Judge. Murderers now get 30
years without parole. That’'s what they get. That's what the
law says they get. But, justice and the law on April of 1981
provided that murder was 30 with 15. That was the law and that
was the maximum then, Judge.

All the discussion in Mr. Huth’s sentence memo about
Yarborough is in some measure unnecessary. No one can deny
that there are 3 dead bodies, 3 human beings are gone. But,
the imposition of this sentence should take into account more
than that lust for punishment. Thinking persons reviewing the
totality of this case cannot help but conclude that all of this
took place in one jumble. Again, I'm not trying to justify it

but I think it’'s important to understand that these are not
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cold and dispassionate acts that are independent of one:

another. Bad decision making, oh absolutely, to the point of
taking human life, not to be rationally explained.

! But, I didn’t think that one could conclude that Mr.
Scabone was being irrational at the time. Had it been that
everyone recognized how dangerous his bursts of éempe; were
previous, if he had gotten some treatment, I can’'t guess at
that, Judge. But I hope the Court’s not going to guess at some
cold and dispassionate, you know, this theory of the case where
he kills his wife and then he sits there tapping the knife on
his hand until the rest of the family members get home.

There’'s certainly an inference of that from the
testimony of Camacho. But it’s just that, it's only an
inference, Judge. And even if it were 80, that still would not
mean that Mr. Scabone had returned to his right senses in time
to prevent those 2 additional killings. It is wholely
appropriate for this Court to impose concurrent sentence,
Judge, your Honor. Yarborough says you should generally
impose, if the Court feels it's appropriate, 2 consecutive, the
more serious.

But, Yarborough also says that one should look at
whether it was simply one incident. Whether it's derivative of
the same excitement that caused the jury to convict for passion
provocation in the first instance.

I'm not trying to excuse the death of Mr. Scabone's
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mother-in-law and sister-in-law, but, your Honor, I think 4

consecutive sentences is preposterous under the circumstances.

It may leave some feeling a little cold, but that may well be

b we've b used to the more serious punishments that

:pg legislature subsequently enacted. I think we need to
divorce ourselves from that, Judge. We need to éo back to 1981
when the law was 30 with 15.

I would ask the Court to impose a sentence in toto of
30 years with a 15 year period of parole ineligibility. And I
don’‘t say that lightly, your Honor. Because if the Court chose
to run the 4 counts concurrent to one another, you don’'t have
to give 30 with 15. Mr. Scabone’s got no priors. There are
any number of mitigating factors that could apply to Mr.
Scabone, not tl.. least of which is that he may not have been in
full control of his faculties at the time, your Honor.

Thirty with 15 back in those days, if you had a 18 or
19-year-old defendant in front of you and you thought that he
had made a dreadful mistake, you didn’t have to give him 30
with 15. You could have given him a flat 20. Now, I'm saying
all right go ahead, give Mr. Scabone the 30 with 15, take into
account the fact that those last 2 killings did not have to
happen. Take into account, as I‘m sure the State will remind
you, that there were any number of stab wounds that way
exceeded the number required to end life.

There are some things about this case that are
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unpleasant that might lead the Court to impose a sentence

greater than the presumptive sentence. But, 4 consecutive
J;B:enc-l is greater than any rational sentence, your Honor.
Fo;r consecutive sentences is not called for. It's not, just
under the circumstances. .

I suspect that if the Court does impose the sentence
of 30 years with a 15 year period of parole ineligibility, that
you will have taken into account those aggravating factors in
providing, one, not only a period of parole ineligibility, but
the maximum period of parole ineligibility. Your Honor, I
think that I will conclude my comments at that point. Thank
you, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Scabone, is there anything that you'd
like to say to the Court before we impose sentences? There are
a lot of members ot the Estevez family present in the first 2
rows.

MR. SCABONE: I think Mr. McLaughlin defended me in
the right way that it should have been done.

THE INTERPRETER: Your Honor, may I ask Mr. Scabone
for one word, to clarify one word?

MR. SCABONE: If there were certain evidence, it would
have been different to begin with. Mrs. Anna in 1989 she never
speak.

THE COURT: I‘m sorry, Mr. Scabone, you’ve got to

speak very slow, Mr. Scabone, because of the interpreter.

i
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MR. SCABONE: Because for me I say really fasc. wMrs.

Anna in the statement of 1981 --

THE COURT: Madam Interpreter, will you tell him while
you‘re interpreting he has to stay quiet so we can get what
you're saying. Madam Interpreter, can you put on.the }ecord
what you can recall he just said?

THE INTERPRETER: I just mentioned to Mr. Scabone that
while I'm speaking he remain quite.

THE COURT: What would you like us to know because you
have to go very slowly.

MR. SCABONE: Excuse me.

THE COURT: That's okay. When the interpreter is
interpreting for our reporter here, You can’‘t continue to keep
talking or go on to a new statement because we’'re still doing
the old statement.

MR. SCABONE: Mrs. Anna in 1981, she never mentioned
about the fire. 1In 1989 it was taken another statement from
her but she never mentioned again about the fire. Let’'s say if
I killed my wife, I kill Norma, I kill Yanette, I kill Fito, I
kill the Peruvian and I give my car to them so they can go to
work, that’s something stupid. Excuse me. Mrs. Halea, at the
end, she say that the boy knows everything. He remembers i
everything. You may believe, you may think that I'm guilcy,
but this is not about thinking, but it’s about believing. I

may continue for a long time.
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THE COURT: Anything you've got to say, Mr. Scabcne,

now is your chance to say it.

MR. SCABONE: Well, I want to appeal and I‘m going to
appeal. If I think that it was not just, excuse me, I'm
smiling, what else, many more things, what can I_lny.f If Mr.
Nelson was allowed to give a statement, he collaborated with
police. If you check the reports you can see, I'm not going to
say that I've never said I'm going to kill you. What's more, I
always say, I mentioned in my cell, I came back from vacation
with Monica. She came the 15th. I came, we came back from
vacation. I came back from vacation and I killed a woman.

This is not the case but anyway here I am. I’'m going to appeal
and let’s see what’s going to happen.

THE COURT: After today Mr. McLaughlin will file the
necel-a;y papers. You have 45 days from today’s date, Mr.
Scabone. Mr. McLaughlin will protect your interest by filing
the appeal.

MR. SCABONE: Thank you and excuse me.

THE COURT: Mr. Huth, I see a number of the members of
Estevez family and some of the other family members and friends
here today.

MR. HUTH: Judge, what I’'d like to do is just address
some legal issues and then I'd like to have them talk.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. HUTH: Judge, what was adduced during the course
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of trial from Elliot Cammaroto Camacho was Alberto Scabone toid

h%ﬂ that he had a fight with his wife and during the course of
tpf fight he told her that she grabbed the knife and then he
grabbed the knife from her and he stabbed her. That is
tgglec:cd in the jury’s verdict. But, he also te;lllﬁer that
he kills Norma, the mother, the 59-year-old mother and
19-year-old Yanette as they come into the apartment. This is
what he tells her.

This is not a killing that is done all at once and the
jury reflected that in their verdict. They said passion
provocation for Monica Scabone and purppl.ful or knowing murder
for both Yanette Estevez and Norma B-c;ve:. So I submit,
Judge, that these are separate and distinct acts.

The argument that Mr. McLaughlin is makirg to urge
concurrent terms with all of these offenses, the question, in
my mind is, well, whose crime does he get the 30 years with 15
years on? Is it because of killing Yanette Estevez or is it
because of killing Norma Estevez? Where do you fit the
aggravated arson in? Where do you fit the life of Monica
Scabone in that sentencing scheme? What he’s asking for,
basically, is a free crime. Give me one, run the others
concurrent and I‘m basically going to get free crimes for 2
bodies.

I submit, Judge, that that flies against the law that

I have submitted in my sentencing memo. Again, Judge, the
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crimes have different purposes. They are separate and distince

acts. The first is a passion provocation manslaughter and the
q;;ond 2 are purposeful or knowing murder probably to cover up
his acts. That wasn’t enunciated, but the reference is there.
Ty. inference can be drawn.

Norma Estevez was killed with her jacket on and her
shoes on. Nineteen year old Yanette was killed fully clothed
with her shoes on. These women, the Court can draw an
inference, had come into the apartment and that’s what they met
in the apartment. Then he takes the women, puts 2 twin beds
together, places them on the twin beds, lights them on fire
with a flammable liquid, hence the aggravated arson.

Regarding the aggravated arson, we have a whole
separate class of victims. Besides the fact that he’s burning
his own premises, we have the Melillo family that lives on the
second and third floors. They are forced out of their house
because of this fire.

So, regarding the imposition of consecutive versus
concurrent sentences, I‘'m going to ask the Court to consider
the opinion of State vs. Sebastian Montouri where it is clearly
laid out in that case where the imposition of 3 consecutive
life sentences for a triple homicide that occurred over a
single time period in an apartment on South Orapge Avenue here
in Newark, very similar circumstances, 3 people killed around

the same time within a single dwelling, the Court gave 3
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consecutive life sentences.

The rationale relied on was because of the unique
lé:tul of murder, the present case is not controlled by State
va. Yarborough. So when you’re talking about consecutive
versus concurrent sentences, the Supreme Court, the Apbella:e
Division, has said that murder holds a different type of lighc.
Specifically it states that in State vs. Zarinski, 75 N.J. 101
on page 107, and I quote, "the legislature has not expressly or
inferentially suggested an intent to reduce the punishment for
those convicted of multiple murders."

These are 3 murders. Now, one is a murder committed
in the heat of passion but they are 3 murders. It goes on to
say that the legislators’ intent that a defendant may be
subject to a lifc term for every homicide of which he is found
guilty. So, the case law is there. It takes homicide and it
separates it from every other offense as it should.

Your Honor, that brings us to the point where now you
must make a determination whether or not you can impose the
maximum for each of these offenses and that is going to be
based upon the aggravating factors. Do the aggravating factors
outweigh the mitigating factors under 2C:44-1. I submit that
aggravating factor number 1 does apply. Even though this is a
murder and you can’t say that the gravity of harm inflicted the
deaths, I agree with that. However, we’'re talking about a

situation where these 3 women were stabbed a total of 96 times
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and then the desecration on the women because their bodies wera

°H£°““ on the bed, doused where a flammable fluid and lit on
fire.

So there is a specially heinous nature to this
particular offense. That's why I submit that agg;avqiing
factor number 1 does apply. Aggravating factor number 2, the
gravity and seriousness of the harm inflicted on the victim,
including whether or not the defendant knew or'tcllonably
should have known that the victim of the offense was
particularly vulnerable to advanced age. Norma Estevez was 59
years old. There is an aggravating factor in number 12 that
does not apply because if Norma Estevez was 60, aggravating
factor number 12 does apply.

So, we're talking about a 59-year-old woman who,

because of her advanced age, probably cannot defend herself

like a younger woman could, and that should count as an
aggravating factor. Aggravating factor number 3, the risk that
the defendant will commit another offense. Judge, you even
heard evidence of that. I'm not talking about a conviction,
but you heard Elliot Cammaroto Camacho say that this guy had
told her that he was going to kill her just like he killed his
family in New Jersey. And she asked him really, like the way.
you would do to your family in New Jersey and he said yes, if I
have to, I will.

So there’s a risk that he’s going to do it again.
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Aggravating factor number 9 is a need for deterrence. I mean,

I_?on’t even have to address that. This type of conduct has to
bg'dcterrcd.

Judge, I submit that because of the aggravating
tgc:orl outweigh the mitigating factors number 1£,the‘four: can
impose the maximum terms. We're talking about a 10-year periocd
for the manslaughter with S years without parole. A 10-year
period for the aggravated arson with 5 years without parole and
then a 30-year term with 15 years without parole for each of
:pe murders.

What I'm asking the Court to impose is a total term of
80 years with 40 years without parole because of these
offenses. Judge, it’s at this moment I would ask that the
Estevez family and friends be allowed to address the Court.

THE COURT: Sure. Just for the purposes of the
proceedings, we have an official court interpreter here with
us, Lauren Egbert from the A.0.C.. Ma‘’am, could you give us
your name and spell it for us please.

MARTHA GONZALE 2, SWORN.

THE COURT: What would you like to tell us?

MS. GONZALEZ: Your Honor, I want to tell you that my
life, since the second of April of 1981, to this date, has been
a true hell. In a constant depression I have been unzble to
resign myself to the unjust loss of my mother and my beloved

sisters. Your Honor, this man who is in front of us is a man
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without scruples, without feelings, without a heart.

At this
moment I have pleaded with God all these years asking for

Jantice.

Today I ask, I plead with your Honor in the name of my
sister Anna Gonzalez, in the name of Elliot Alverado and in my
own name that you have no pity, just as he had né pity with my
loved ones. And that you give him the maximum sentence. Ttige
is possible, the electric chair, although this would not repay
the damage that he's done to us. I want also to thank the
ladies and gentlemen of the jury for their correct verdict.
Thank you.

Your Honor, in your hands is the peace of mind of all
of us. That’s all. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Miss Gonzalez.

MR. HUTH: There’'s a family friend who would like to
talk.

THE COURT: Sure. Ma’am, could you give us your name?
ELENA MA Z ZA, SWORN.

THE COURT: You were there for almost the whole trial,
right?

MS. MAZZA: Yes. Your Honor. Yanette was my best
friend, my very close, we shared many good times together.
March 1981 was supposed to be the happiest time of my life. I
share the happiness with Yanette at my wedding. That was the

last time I saw her, two weeks before the murders. There
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aren’t enough words to express my feelings for her and the

tgﬂily. Alberto Scabone not only took their lives in a brutal
way, but he also took away a piece of all of us.

I prey to God all these years that this day would come
true. Your Honor, I ask you to give him the maximum sentence
allowed by the law, even though that still is not enough to
bring them back to us. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Miss Mazza.

MR. HUTH: Your Honor, that is the conclusion of my
legal comments. I submit that the law is clear, especially
dealing with these types of offenses, that consecutive
sentences are not only allowed, they’'re warranted.

Regarding the aggravated arson, that is obviously a
Sseparate and distinct act because of the separate class of
victims involved in that case. There’s just one last thing
that I have to say here, I just can’t imagine, I cannot imagine
what these women went through on April the 1st of 1981 when
this guy attacked them like that. I can't imagine the horror
scene that this guy inflicted on them as they walked into their
apartment. I mean, that’s just beyond comprehension what that
scene must have been like. That had to be the most horrible
thing in the world.

Judge, this case cries out for justice. This case
cries out for the absolute maximum term that the Court can give

this guy because he’'s going to do it again. He's done it
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before and he has absolutely no remorse, no remorse whatscever

for the deaths of these 3 women. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. This was, in fact, a 2-week jury
trial before this Court. Mr. Scabone was found guilty on count
1 ta passion provocation manslaughter of the mo:har~iyllaw.
59-year-old Monica Scabone. On count number 2 he was found
guilty of murder, purposeful and knowingly, of a sister-in-law
19-year-old Yanette Estevez. Count number 3, he was likewise
found guilty of the knowing and purposeful murder of his
mother-in-law Norma Estevez on count 1 was passion provocation
of his wife Monica Scabone. The fourth and final count,
separate charge regarding the fact :haé a fire was set
allegedly to cover the crimes, Mr. Scabone was convicted by the
jury of second degree arson.

As already indicated, Mr. Scabone now is 40 years of
age. This incident goes back many, many years, April 2, 1981.
For those not familiar with the facts of the case, Mr. Scabone,
shortly after the commission of the offense, fled the United
States of America and basically was on the run from law
enforcement authorities. An indictment was returned very
shortly after the date of the incidents on April 2, 1981, but
through the benefit of the Interpol International Police
Network, Mr. Scabone was ultimately arrested in Central America
and returned to this country shortly before the time of this

trial.
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On April 2, 1981, I totally agree with the jury’'s

verdict, Mr. Scabone did brutally stab and kill his wife Monica
s:;;onc. He then killed, after a passage of time, his
mother-in-law and then a 19-year-old Yanette Estevez who had
tPg misfortune of coming home early from school. Each victim
was stabbed numerous times, including stab wounds to the back.

I think an especially important highlight and piece of
evidence for the jury to consider, it was in fact brought out
that there was a total of 93 stab wounds allocated among those
3 poor victims. It was also brought out during the course of
the trial that especially for the victims who were killed after
Monica Scabone, in the scenario as the killings were provided
by Mr. Scabone's present wife, Miss Elliot Alverado, and she
indicated that Mr. Scabone said after killing his wife Monica
Scabone, he then lay in wait for his mother-in-law and his
sister-in-law.

That version of the situation was verified in many
respects by the coroner’s report indicating that the bodies of
Yanette Estevez and Norma Estevez were in fact fully clothed.
People were wearing their street shoes and they had
windbreakers on. They were fully clothed after just having
come in from outdoors into their family apartment which they
thought was a safe place and unfortunately for them Mr. Scabone
lay in wait for them at that time. And, as a result of that,

they were all killed there.
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After the murders, Mr. Scabone, again in an attempt to

flee the scene and to evade arrest, set fire to the family
n;;rta‘n:. That’s bad enough, number one. But that was a
multi-family dwelling at 239 Bloomfield Avenue. That action,
not even considering the injuries that possibly goulq'havc been
sustained by the arriving or responding fire fighters or
firemen caught if a floor collapsed at that building, but also
was a multiple dwelling with other family members of other
tenants living in that building.

Mr. Scabone, during the course of the trial as he
shown on April 2, 1981, had no remorse on April 2 for anybody .
And he had no remorse for anybody even up to and including the
present day. In fact, during the course of his
cross-examination on the stand Mr. Scabone, I can’'t recount the
number of times Mr. Scabone laughed.
He thought he was having a good time here testifying in his own
behalf.

Mr. McLaughlin did an excellent job and so did Mr.
Huth, for that matter, but Mr. McLaughlin gave him a million
dollars defense in this case. The only person, Mr. Scabone is
looking for someone to blame for a guilty verdict in this case
is his own testimony from the witness stand because if anybody
sunk his own ship, Mr. Scabone did an admirable job in front of
the jury laughing and joking his way to a long custodial

sentence and he will have a long time to think about what he
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did during the course of this trial and what he did back in

1981.

There obviously is a presumption of incarceration. We
have 3 separate deaths. These are first degree offenses and
a}.c second degree offenses. I'm familiar with all gﬁe facts
of the case. I've also reviewed Mr. Scabone's eligibility for
release on parole. The mitigating factors that do apply, I
agree with Mr. McLaughlin, we heard mention during the course
of the trial that Mr. Scabone has been involved with a number
of international law enforcement bodies and a number of
different countries. But, not one iota of proof has been
presented in the way of certified abstract. So as for as I'm
concerned, Mr. Scaewone has no prior record.

Obviously Mr. Scabone’s conduct is the result of
circumstances unlikely to reoccur. That’s an obvious one when
the victims are deceased. They’'re never going to be back on
this earth with us again. In regard to mitigating factor
number 11, Mr. Scabone has a kidney medical problem which will
require attention in the institution, but that’'s something that
can be addressed during his incarceration. :

In regard to the aggravating factors, I am mindful of
the double counting requirement and criteria. So for these
reasons, I'‘m not going to count in aggravating factor numbers 1
and 2 on our list concerning circumstances being heinous and

cruel involving the stab wounds. Likewise, in fact, with
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Monica Estevez had been stabbed a number of times and that his

mother-in-law Norma was 59 years of age.

55 Again, I don’t want to be accused of double counting
an; of the factors, so this sentence is not in any way based on
aggrlva:ing factor number 1 or 2. Number 3, obviqusly the risk
t;at Mr. Scabone will commit another offense. I':hiﬁk the
likelihood is extremely high, if not a hundred percent certain
that that aggravating factor applies to this case. Aggravating
factor number 6, the seriousness of the offense.

We have 3 separate victims plus the arson. So, easily
other people could have been injured as a result of Mr.
Scabone’s conduct other than the 3 individuals of his own
family who in fact were brutally murdered by him/ And,
aggravating factor number 9, the need for detevrence.

The fact that 3 human lives are lost, I don’t think
needs to be stated anymore on the record that that obviously is
conduct that someone cannot incur. It‘s clear that the
aggravating factor clearly preponderate and I’'m clearly
convinced that those aggravating factors substantially outweigh
the mitigating factors requiring consecutive discretionary
minimum terms on this case. There’'s no Graves aspects to this
case for a number of reasons, but including the fact that
there’s no operable weapon, it was a knife that was utilized.

At the time of the commission of the crime it was

already pointed out by Mr. McLaughlin in April of 1981 the code
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of criminal justice was different than it is today. The murder

statute, at that time, provided that murder is a crime of che
Qiflc degree. But a person convicted of murder may be
sentenced by the Court, number 1, to a term of 30 years of
uh;qh the person must serve 15 years before being eligible for
parole. Or number 2, as in the crime of the first degree,
except that the maximum term for such a crime of the first
degree shall be 30 years.

I've also reviewed the sentencing guidelines of State
vs. Yarborough. We’'ve had a recent legislative change in the
Yarborough rule, but that legislative bill did not address
whether it would apply retroactively or prospectively. So
rather than look for an appealable issue, I‘m going to consider
that Yarborough still applies to this situation, even though
that statute is no longer in effect and I am sentencing Mr.
Scabone in accordance with the Yarborough guidelines.

Those guidelines are, number 1, that there are no free
crimes in this system for which the punishment should fit the
crime. Number 2, the reasons for imposing either consecutive
or concurrent sentences should be separately stated on the
record in our decision. And some of the reasons to be
considered by the Court should include facts relating to the
crimes including under Subsection A, the crimes and their
objectives were predominantly independent of each other. B,

that the crimes involved separate acts of violence or threats
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of violence. C, the crimes were committed at different times

or separate places rather than being committed so closely in
tI;o and place as to indicate a single period of aberrant
behavior.
i Had any of the crimes involved multiple victims, E,
the convictions for which the sentences are to be imposed are
numerous. And number 4, there should be no double counting the
aggravating factors. Number S, successive terms for the same
offense should not ordinarily be equal to the punishment for
the first offense. And number 6, there should be an overall

outer limit on the accumulation of consecutive sentences for

multiple off not to d the sum of the longer terms
that could be imposed for the 2 most serious offenses.
Although Mr. Scabone’s offenses may be construed as
being committed so closely in time and place as to indicate a
single period of aberrant behavior as recommended by Mr.
McLaughlin, even conceding that point, if in fact it does
exist, and I don’t concede that fact because of the time
periods in between the arrival of the separate victims into
that apartment, these circumstances are vastly outweighed by
the fact that these offenses involved numerous multiple
victims. And separate and distinct the acts of violence,
including what I characterize as the execution style murders of

2 totally i family bers who had absolutely no contact

with the initial dispute that arose into the stabbing of Monica
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Scabone and the passion provocation manslaughter of Mrs.

sq:bonc, as well as the second degree arson on the multiple
family dwelling.

What is clear is the crimes committed were
predominantly independent of one another and theyvinydlved
separate acts of violence. And it was likewise apparent from
the trial proofs that all 3 victims were fully clothed and
stabbed to death individually at different times as they
entered the apartment. The fire was then set after all of the
deaths had been completed to conceal the evidence and to assist
Mr. Scabone in making his get away.

And just because Mr. Scabone went into some of the
facts, I'd like to go into some of the facts in case this does
go up on appeal.

Mr. Scabone is trying to give the impression that he
didn’t know what was going on, he panicked, he just acted
irrationally. But Mr. Scabone knew enough to get his passport.
He knew enough to pack his suitcase. He knew enough to take
his t.v. set. He knew enough to get his son Tito’'s passport.
He knew enough to get up to the place of employment to get his
last pay check.

He knew enough to have his friends cover for him at
work so no one would be looking for him. He knew enough to
check his former travel agent to try to get the cheapest flight

out of the country. He knew enough to try to contact family
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members in Florida to see if he could try to get to Costa Rica

by going down through Florida.

So he was in a panic all right and showed such remorse
that 6 or 7 days later he is basically trying to date another
woman in the Square at Mexico City. And he's deeply in remorse
for the loss of his family, 7 days later he’'s starting up a new
family acquaintance who he ultimately married, Mrs. Alvarado
Estevez who was here during the course of the trial. So that's
the mind set so the Appellate Division is also aware of all of
those factors when this case goes up on appeal.

The primary criteria for the yeverity of punishment
obviously is the gravity of the defendant’s crimes here. They
don‘t come any higher. We have, with the loss of 3 human
people, their lives, all their careers, everything that they
had going for them. The wounds were extensive. We saw the
doctor, Dr. Tambor, he testified that there was over 90 stab
wounds. Arson, the multiple dwelling absolutely no concern for
the safety of anybody else in that building, including the
firemen or any of the other tenants. His only thought was just
to get away as clean as he could and try to get out of the
country before anyone found out what was going on.

My primary rule is as the extent of Mr. Scabone's
brutality and violence rises, obviously so too should the
number of years that Mr. Scabone is locked up so he can‘t do

anymore damage to the community.
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So, it is therefore the intent of this Court by these

consecutive sentences with parole ineligibility terms that Mr.
Scabone be sentenced to the maximum possible sentence allowed
b{ the law and this is the only way that society can be
pggcected and justice can be served.

So, on count number 2, the purposeful and knowing
murder of Yanette Estevez, I'm committing Mr. Scabone to the
Commissioner for a term of 30 years with a 15-year period of
parole ineligibility and violent crime penalty of $30 under the
old statute. I am, on count number 3, the purposeful and
knowing murder of Norma Estevez, his mother-in-law, the woman
who loaned him money all the time so he would utilize that
money during the course of his daily life and he paid her back
by stabbing her to death, he’s committed to the custody of the
Commissioner of the Department of Corrections for a term of 30
years with a 15-year period of parole ineligibility. This
sentence to run consecutively to count number 2. Another
violent crime penalty of $30.

On count number 1, the passion provocation
manslaughter of his wife, at the time, Monica Scabone, I'm
committing Mr. Scabone to the custody of the Commissioner for a
term of 10 years with a S-year period of parole ineligibility
to run consecutive to counts 2 and 3. Violent crime penalty of
$30. And on count number 4, the second degree arson, you're

committed, likewise, to the custody of the commissioner for a
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term of 10 years with a S-year period of parole ineligibility,

to run consecutive to counts 1, 2 and 3. And violent crime
penalty $30.

Just so the judgment of conviction is clear, all
sentences to run consecutive to each other. No !qnteﬁce is to
run concurrent.  Everything is to run consecutive to each
other. Aggregate total is 80 years in prison, 40 years without
parole. I’'m committing Mr. Scabone, if he makes it through
prison, will be 80 years of age when he is released from
prison.

Mr. Scabone, there was no death penalty, just so the
family members know, that was in effect at that time.

Likewise, the sentencing statute was amended but it was after
Mr. Scabone’s d»te. So I know one of the family members asked
for death penalty. This is not a death penalty case.

Mr. Scabone, you’ve got 45 days from today’'s date to
appeal the sentence. If you can’t afford a lawyer, one will be
assigned to represent you upon application to the court free of
charge. Do you understand that you have that right, Mr.
Scabone, if you want to appeal? Mr. McLaughlin has already
informed the Court that he is going to file all the paperwork
that you're concerned about for that appeal on counts 1, 2 and
3.

MR. SCABONE: Yes.

THE COURT: You’'ve got 336 days jail credit. There’'s
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no dismissal on this account. And Mr. Scabone, just based on

the fact that a search was done down on the jail floor today

and I think certain items of weapons were recovered from your

p;rlon. I'm just advising Yyou, don’t make any statements, but
1've been informed that the Prosecutor’s Office ig gding to
file formal complaints against you arising out of the incidencs
that occurred down in the holding cell area for this morning.

So, if we get those complaints, we can address them.
I didn’t consider them for today's Proceeding because I don’t
know what they totally involve.

(The proceeding is concluded.)
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CERIIEICATE

I, YVONNE DAVION, CSR, License Number XI01280, an Official
Court Reporter in and for the State of New Jersey, do hereby
certify the foregoing to be prepared in full compliance with
the current Transcript Format for Judicial Proceedings and is a
true and accurate transcript of my stenographic notes taken in

the above matter to the best of my knowledge and ability.

A
Y . CSR
Offiicial Court Reporter
Rw. 111 Essex County Courts Bldg.
Newark, New Jersey.

Date: 7-6-7




Hon. Bugene J. Codey, Jr. J.S8.C.

ALBERTO SCASONE #258208-8SB1#904520-A
New Jersey State Prison

P. O, Box 861

Trenton, New Jersey 08625
Defendant-Movant, Bro Se

PRESESTLY COMPINED SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION-ESSEX COUNTY

INDICTMENT NO.-4225-08-80

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, :
Plaintiff-Respondent, ] SRININAL ACTION
g -2 R D ER-
- VS, - "
Defendant-Movant. 3 vy

WITHE THIS MATTER, having been opened to the Court on motions
related to the letter brief filed by ALBERTO SCABONE, the
defendant appearing pro se and with the Court having considered
the letter brief and appendix submitted and with the ESSEX COUNTY
PROSECUTOR appearing on behalf of the State and with the Court

having counsidered the arg P d with good cause
appearing to the satisfaction of the Court,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED on this day of ==

2004, that defendant's motion to correct an illegal sentence
pursuant to R. 3:22-12 is:







Hon. Bugene J. Codey, Jr. J.8.C.

ALBERTO QF #258208-881#904520-A
New Jcruy‘ tate Prison
P.0. Box

Trenton, New Jersey 08625
Defendant-Hovant, Pro Se

PRESEVTLY COMFINED SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSRY
LAW DIVISION-ESSEX COUNTY

Indictment No.-4225-08-80

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, H
Plaintiff-Respondent, :
H
- VS, - CERTIPICATION OF SERVICE
H
ALBERTO SCABONE, H
Defendant-Movant, H
I, ALBERTO SCABONE, o igned defend in the

above captioned matter hereby certify on this date at New Jersey
State Prison, located at Trenton, New Jersey, I placed a copy
of my notice of motion to correct an illegal sentence,
letter-brief and dix in pport of motion, and proposed

order in the ordinary mail with p ge prepaid add d to:

PAULA TUMAYSEU DOW

Acting Essex County Prosecutor
Bssex County Court Building

50 West Market Street

Newark, New Jersey 07102
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
Plaintiff-Raspondent,

o (K3 &

ALBERTO SCABONE,
Dafandant-Rovant.

Hony Eugene 2. Codey, 245.C.

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAY DIVISION
ESSEX COuUNTYy

Indictaent No.-$225-08-30

CRIALNAL ACTION

On Aotion fo Cossect
An Iffegal Sentence

a 3 2 7
Ry 3:22-12,

APPENDIX ON BENALF OF DEFENDANT-ROVANT.

ALBERTO SCABONE $258208
§814940520-4

New Jensey State Prison
Post Office Box 861
7aenton, New Jeneey 08625

BRESCNTLY CONEINED
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ALBERTO SCABONE #258208-8B1#940520-A
New Jersey State Prison
P. O, Box 861
Trenton, New Jersey 08625

Defendant-Movant, Pro Se

September 13, 2004

Nevark, New Jersey 07102

Re: State vs. Alberto Scabome
Notios to Cocrrect am Il Seateace
Essex County Iad. §

Dear Judge Codey:

Please accept this letter-brief in lieu of a more formal
brief in support of defc..dant’s Scabone motion to correct
an illegal sentence relative to indictment number 4225-08-80,

TEE TRIAL COURT VIOLATED DEFENDANT'S FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL
mnmmnuumnnmm-u
SENTENCED NIN CONSBCUTIVE MAXINUM TERNS, INCLUDING
mmwn&u INELIGIBILITY, BASED UPON PACTS
NEITEER ADNITTED BY DEFPENDANT NOR POUND BY THE JURY.

Defendant was coavicted of two counts of murder, one count
of manslaughter and one count of second-degree arson. The
sentencing court, in imposing consecutive teras for the murder
(30 years with a 15-year parole disqualifier for each) the
manslaughter (10 years with a five-year parole disqualifier),

and the second-degree arson (10 years with a five-year parocle

disqualifier) the maximum possible sentence allowed by law
in 1981,
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Super. o ersey
Essex Couat Bldg.

SO West Street

Wevark, New Jersey 07102

At the time of the offenses, defendant, as a comvicted

surdered was subject to the following: (1) to a term of !0.

mdman‘mmtmumhtmhh'
eligible for parole, or (2) as im a crime of the first degree
mm:mmm!u-m.nmumnrnm
shall be 30 years." ¥,J,8,A, 2C:11-3(b). Defendant received
the maximus ters. (8737-1 to 4).' That sentence 1s illegal
and msust be vacated,

In addition to the | t for der, defend

received the maximum term of 10 years with a 5 year parole bar
on the second degree conviction of arson , to run consecutive
to the murder, (8737-24 to 38-2). Judge Codey did not merged
none of the coavictions with the murder coavictions,
(8T38-4 to 7). As discussed belov, like the murder sentence,
the tera imposed on the arson comviction is also illegal and
sust be vacated.

s~ ulul to do!oadcnt'. sentencing transcripts made
a part b in ppendix marked 8T1 to 39.

g sl B LR



NONORABLE BUGENE J. CODEY, JR. J.85.C. Page Three
Superior Court of '.:12""

Bt ke e

Newark, New Jersey 07102

The sentencing court found one mitigating factor: ‘acter
(1) Nr, Scabone has no prior record. However, the sentencing
court found three aggravating f factor (3) the risk
that defeadant might comamit her off factor (6) the

seriousness of the offense; and factor (9) the need for
deterrence. (8T31-3 to 32-14).

None of the aggravating factors were reflected in the jury
verdict nor adaitted by the defendant. Rather, they were all
found by the judge, by a preponderance of the evidence. See
State v, 0'Donnell, 117 N.J. 210, 215 (1989) (sentencing factors
need only be found by a preponderance of the evidence). The
judge determined that the aggravating factors outweighed the

mitigating, and, as ted, imp d the i term of 1life,
and the mandatory 30-year parole bar.
On June 24, 2004, the United States Suprese Court decided

Blakely v, Washington, 124 S.Ct. 2531 (2004), which involves
the Washington State ng sch The defendant in Blakely

‘having pleaded guilty to a class B felony, faced a statutory

presumptive range of 49-53 moaths and a maximum term of 120

h The ing judge found aggravating facts, and
imposed 90 months. Id. at 2535, Although the sentence was less
than the saximum ters, the Supreme Court found it

unconstitutional.
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The Court held that, under the Sixth Amendment, the jury,
rather than the judge, had to find beyond a ble doubt
any fact that 4 d the t above the presusptive
49-53 months. Jd. at 2537.

The Suprese Court pointed out that its holding in Blakely

vas governed by its earlier decision in Apprendi. v, _Nevw_Jecrsey,
530 U.S. 466, 490 (200), which held:

"Other than the fact of a prior coavictionm,
any fact that increases the penalty for
a crise beyond the prescribed statutory
saxisua sust be subaitted to l. jury,
ry ala ble doubt.

PE 2 4

The Blakely Court concluded that, for Apprendi purposes,
the relevant statutory maximum "is the saximum sentence a judge
may ispose solely_.ce_the_basis_of_the_facts_reflected_in_the
Aucy_verdict_or_sdmitted by tbe defesdast.” 1d. at 2537.

The Court noted that, under Washington law, the judge could

not have 4 d the t beyond the ive 49-53

P unp

months based solely on the facts the defendant adaitted in the

guilty plea. 1In order to i the t s the judge had
to take into account facts other than those which were used
to p the dard g 1d. at 2537-38. The Court
observed, "Had the judge imp d the (enh d) solely

on the basis of the plea, he would have been reversed.” 1d.
at 2538; U = - ¥ ker, _.. P.3d ____, 2004 WL 1535858
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at *4 (7th Cir. July 16, 2004) federal semtencing guildlines
un. titutional insof as “"they limit defendants’ right to
jury and to the reascmable-doubt standard”); Upjted _States
¥a_Croxford, ___. P.Supp.2d ____, 2004 WL 1521560 (D. Utah
July 7, 2004) (same), adhered to by Uajited gtates x. Croxford,
az== FeSupp.2d ____, 2004 WL 1551564 (D. Utah July 12, 2004).

Similarly, if the judge had ordered defendant to serve
the maximum life term without saking any factual findings, this
Court would have had to te the Ses, State_.w,
Glover, 230 N.,J. Super. 333, 344 (App. Div. 1988) (affirming
life ters for murder on yround that there was asple support
for aggravating factors judge relied on); State . _Serrone,
95 N.J. 23, 25 (1983), citing State . Maguire, 84 N.J. 508,
S26 (1980), (life sentence for murder could be imposed upon
consideration of aggravating factors); see also State_w,_ JRoth,
95 N.J. 334, 364 (1984) (revieving court must determine whether
cited aggravating and aitigating f s are b d on compet 0
credible evidence).

Sentencing under the Criminal Code is governed by the
principle of uniformity Qith the goal of avoiding disparity.
$ee State_w,_Brimage, 153 N.J. 1, 22-23 (1998); State_v, _vVasquesz,
129 N.J. 189, 203 (1992). Accordingly, like the Washington
systes at issue in Blakely, the Code sets forth sentencing
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nnuaumc-puntu-nunqummnaunhh
specified aggravating and mitigating fact bef imsposing

sentence above or below the presumptive teram, and also spells
out the circumstances in which courts can impose extended teras

and periods of parole ineligibility. See 8,9, 2C343-6; 2C343-7;
2C:44-12, Db, £(1). While the Code does not prescribe a
presumptive tera for murder, 2C:44-1(f), the statutory minimum
terms of 30 years is, effectively, the presusptive term for
murder: the court could not i defendant's b d

30 years based solely on the jury verdict.

The carjacking statute provides a useful analogy. Like
murder, carjacking has a -u;-n- and maximum term covering a
vide range, but no presumptive ters. In State_u, 3adoyan, 290
N.J. Super. 280, 290 (App. Div., 1996), the Appellate court
emphasized the need for a presusptive term "to guide imposition
of a carjacking yond the d. Yy minisua®™ and
to serve as “a benchmark which may be adjusted upward or downward
depending oa (the court's) evaluation and balancing of the
aggravating and mitigating factors.® Accordingly, the court
identified the minimum sentence as the presumptive tera for
carjacking, and required the sentencing judge to make findings
of fact to justify a sentence above the presusptive. 1d; accord
State_w,. parardi, 369 N.J. Super. 445 (App. Div. 2004); State
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¥o_Seary, 323 N.J. Super. 157 (App. Div. 1999). 1In short, the
30-year minimum is the presusptive ters for murder, and the

aggravating factors the judge relied on to increase defendant's
sentence were found by the judge by a preponderance of the
evidence, and not by the jury beyond reasonable doubt, the eighty
year term with a forty year parole bar imposed upon defend
violates his state and federal comstitutional rights to trial
by jury and due process of lav, and therefore, must be reversed,
UsS,_Const, amends. VI, XIV; M.J. Comst, art I, %1 1, 10,
Defendant .was also coanvicted of the second-degree charge
of arson. The Code expressly states that the presusptive term
for a second-degree offense is seven years. 2C:44 1£(1)(c).

Defendant received a consecutive maximum term of 10 years with
a discretionary five year period of parole ineligibility.
(8737-24 to 38-3).

In 4imposing the maximum tersm, the judge relied on
g9 ing factors, (3), (6) and (9), the same factors he
cited in support of his decision to impose the maximua tera
on the murder coanviction., HNome of those factors were reflected
in the jury's verdict or adaitted by defendant. Thus, for the
same reason that imposition of the maximum term on the arson
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conviction violates defendant's state and federal coastitutiosal
uﬂuutmlbyjlryn-ddum-,namtunam.

Purthermore, under MN,J,$,A, 2C:44-6b, the only way a
umymolomnthuum-—mm
judge is “clearly convinced® that the aggravating circumstances
“substantially outweigh” the mitigating. See State_u. Bayless,
114 N3, 169, 179 (1989); State_u, Millisss, 310 N.J. Super.
92, 98 (App. Div. 1998)(even when imposing a mandatory extended
term, a trial court must not imp a ai td Y parole
disqualifier without first finding that the aggravating factors
substantially outweigh the mitigating factors).

In imposing a ainimua term pursuant to 2C:43-6b, the
sentencing court shall specifically place on the record the
aggravating factors ... which justify the imposition of a minimum
term,® 2C:44-1£(1), and its “reasons for imposing sentence,
including ... consideration of the defendant's eligibility
for release under the lav governing parole ..." State.y.. ’
105 N.J. 354, 359 (1987).

In addition to its findings on the various aggravating
and mitigating factors, the sentencing court must “describe
the balancing process® and "explain how it & ined defendant's
sentence.® State v, ZXruse, 105 N.J. at 360. See also State
¥, Sainz, 107 N.J. 283, 290 (1987) (rejecting State's argusent




BUGENE J. GII!. JR. J.8.C. Page Nine
m eu:t of New Ji
30 West Narhet street mas

Nevark, New ao:m 07102 1

that three year mandatory minimum “encompassed an implicit
finding and weighing of aggravating and mitigating factors;®

resentencing ordered); State__v,__vitale, 102 N.J. 350 (1985)
(mem,) (remanded for tencing b “the sentencing

transcript does not reveal an articulation of balancing of
aggravating and mitigating factors required to establish the
base or parole ineligibility terms”); State_x. Bessix, 309 N.J.
Super, 126, 129-30 (App. Div. 1998)(describing the “"three-step
process” that must be followed before imposing a mandatory
minisum sentence; and remanding because of the trial court's
failure to "sufficently articulate on the record its reasons
for imposing a period of parole ineligibility...").

Thus, just as the “standard” sentence in Blakely could
not be exceeded without a finding of certain factors in
aggravation, the sentence in this case cannot exceed the
presumptive nor can a parole bar be imposed without such
findings. See Ring v, Arizoma, 536 U.S. 584, 612, 122 S.Ct.
2428, 2445  (2002)(Scalia, J., concurring) (“iM]hersver
lagg ing) fact exist they must be subject to the usual

requirements of the common law, and to the requiresent enshrined
in our Comstitution, in criminal cases: they must be found by
the jury beyond a reasonable doudbt.”)(Emphasis added).
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Additionally, in New Jersey the decision of whether or
not to imp td or sentencing is based
on judicially established guidelines rather than by -utnu.’

In State v, vYarbough, 100 N.J. 627 (1985), cert denied,
475 U.S. 104 (1986) the Court established the following criteria

to be followed when sentencing for multiple offenses at the
same time:

(1) there can be no free crime . . .
(2) the reasons for imposing either a

ve or t should be
lmtlu:L tated in the tencing decision;
(3) ...the sentencing court should
{consider) ... vhether or not:

predoainantly independent of each other;
(b) the crimes involved separate acts of
iol or threats of viol

(c) the crimes were committed at different
times or sep laces, rath than be.
committed so closely in time as to indicate a
single period of aberrant behavior;

(d) any of the crimes involved multiple
victims; (and)

(e) the convictions for which the sentences
are to be i d are H

"(4) there can be no double counting of
aggravating factors;

(5) successive terms for the same offense
should not ordinarily be equal to the
punishment for the first offense; and

. As 2C312-13; 2C:13-1¢(2); 2C335-4.1; 2C:39-4.14 all
require sentence be served consecutive. K. 2C344-
S5(3),(c), £(2)(3), (h) and (i) require the sentence served
consecutively, unless the court in its discretion concludes
othervise.
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(6) there should be an mnu lmt on the

cusulation of

multiple offenses not to exceed :h. nu of

the 1 t terms (including an extended term

if eligible) that could bo,hpoud for tho

twvo most serious offenses,
1d., 100 W.J. at 643-44 (footnote omitted). The Jarbough
criteria has been fully £ d and wh a sentencing
court has failed to follow them, court's of reviev have reversed

or remanded for new sentencing proceedings. See State__v._Carey,
168 N.J. 413, 424 (2001)("when a trial court fails to give proper

reasons for imposing tive at a single sentencing
proceedings, ordinarily a resand should be required for
resentencing”); State w._Miller, 108 N.J. 112, 122 (1987)(Court

found it “was compelled” to d for ing wh trial
court had failed to give P tat t of for
imposing tive ); State_w,_Cook, 330 N.J. Super.
3

The sixth factor was repealed in L, 1993, ¢ 223. This
enactment left the remainder of the Yarbough criteria untouched,.

A3
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395, 423 (App. Div. 2000)(a remand is ... necessary for the

sentencing judge to give a separate t of for

the imposition of consecutive terms to enable us to determine

wvhether the iamposition of ive wvas a prop
ise of 4ai ion").

Indeed, not too long ago, our Supreme Court addressed the

/ ive t ing decision thusly: “"A trial
judge’s discretion remains guided by the seminal precepts set
forth in State_w,_Yarbough, 100 N.J. 627 (1985)." State_w,_|! "

346 N.J. Super. 583, 590 (App. Div,) aff’'d 174 N.J. 535 (2002).
Since the Yarboygh guidelines are of judicial creation
and have the force of law, Blakely applies to this sentencing
decision as well., C q ly, 1 h as the Yarbough
guidelines require a judge to make factual findings beyond the
facts found by the jury or adaitted by the defendant, imposition
of a consecutive tera violates the right to trial by jury.
Clearly, under Blakely, Apprendi and Ring, a - defendant
has a right to have a jury, not a judge, make the aggravating
factor findings (other than prior record), including the findings
in support of imposing consecutive terms, and that right is
violated when, as here, a judge makes the findings instead,

and consecutive terms exceeding a flat presumptive term are
imposed Accordingly, Blakely, Apprendi, and Ring, limit
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defendant's exposure to the “statutory maximua,” which in his
case is the presumptive seventy years with a thirty-five year
pazole bar for his murder coavictions, and a consecutive maxisua
teza of ten year wvith a five year parole bar for his arson
conviction,
coucusion

For the reasons stated within defendant's Letter-Brief,
the Court should vacant his coavictions. Alternatively, for
the reasons stated vwithin the Letter-Brief the Court must merge
his convictions under Count One, Three amd Pour into Count
Two for the reasons stated here, it must find his sentences
unconstitutional and either modify theam or resand his case for
a nev sentencing procedings.

Respectfully submitted,

MOVANT, BRO SE
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Sssex County, to wit:
mo:-umaus:--aumjm.muc_q«m-p

their osth present that ALBERTO SCABCME

on the  2nd day of ppri1, 1901
stthe ety of  Nemxx
aforesaid and within the jurisdiction of this Court, aid murder Monica Scabone

in the County of Esex

contrary to the provisions of N.J.S. 2Ci1l-)
and against the peace of this Statc, the goverament aad dignity of the same.
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fmencSeeetiitit  szooo cour

and mcrﬂjum.olduSu-olNqu,bchCunqoll-u.-’nl

their oath preseat that ALEDRIO SCABCHE
on the 2na day of orq, 1901
at the city of pevark in the County of Essex

aforesaid and within the jurisdiction of this Court, 44 mirder yannet Ssteves

coatrary to the provisions of y 3.5, 20:11-3
and against the peace of this Statc, the guvernment and dignity of the same.
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ana The Grand Jurors of the State of New Jersey, for the County of Essex, upon

their oath preseat that MLRLRTO SCABONE
on the 2na day of apri1, 1081
at the city of  newark in the County of Essex

aforesaid and within the jurisdiction of this Court, o33 myrder Norra Esteves

contrary to the provisions of, - o 20,733
and against the peace of this State, the government and dignity of the same.

oY



fasscfemtotmetiéc POURTH COUNT
And The Grand Jurors of the State of New Jersey, for the County of Esmex, upon

their oath preseat that ALRPRTO SCAERQIE

on the 2nd day of april, 1981

at the city of Newark in the County of Essex
aforesaid and within the jurisdiction of this Court, did purpossly destroy an
occupled miltiple family dwelling at 239 w Mverne, Newark, N.J.

contrary to the provisions of y.J.S. 2C117-1a.(2), & crire of the Second Dogres
and against the peace of this State, the government aad dignity of the same.
GECRGE L. SOSEIDER
ANTY FROSECUTCR
s 03
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" State of New Jerse, New Jersey Superior Court

v County
£ Law Division - Criminal
ALBERTO SCABONE Bx-"::‘llCn:ofCenvledon
. ange of Judgment
Oelungns (Baandy Canetie eamer E Order for Commitment
11/5/53 DATE OF BATH Judgment of Acquittal
904520A 5 L)
2/3793 OATE OF ARmesT ALOCATONGY  QaIE
4/2/81 , DaTEBm ACC XHoumivaes  ___L1/18/91
11/18/93 OATE OF PLEA Q) JUAY TRIAL T iy
LR NOT GUATY [ GuwTY OmGmAL PLEA CINON-JUAY TRAL o
OMGINAL CHARGES S
W0 ACC MO Can  Qescreaee Qemes  Sus
4225-8-80 1 Murder 1st  2C:ll-4b(a)
Ol ot 2 Murder 1sc  2C:1l-3
i (T 3 Murder lsc 2C:11-3
e (U 4 Arson 2nd  2C:17-1a(2)
FINAL CHARGES -
can —_—— \\// 0. o e
Same as above e -
S N
R, on _1/14/94 ORDEAED and ADJUDGED that the detendant 13 sentenced as fcilows

Ct.#2 - Commit to the Commissioner of the Department of Corrections for the
term of thirty years of which he must serve fifteen yesars before being cliptb
for parole.

Ct.#3 - Commit to the Commissioner of the D'sl!!lil\t of Corrections for the
term of thirty years of which he must serve fifteen years before being
eligible for parole consecutive to Ct.#2.

Ct.#1 - Commit to the Comaissioner of the Department of Corrections for the
term of ten years of which he must secrve five years consecutive to Cts. #2 &

Ct.#4 - Commit to the Commissioner of the Department of Corrections for che
term of ten years of which he must serve five years consecutive to Cts. #2.3

oummmnmun o the authorty
OM---.-u‘-——na-qum 336 days 2/3/93 to
=
1/16/96
= T
Oetonsars ot 2C a0 30|
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offense; the defendant's conduct was the result of circul
to recur; and the imprisonment of the defendant would entail excessive

endant will commic
of which he has been
from

the defendant has no history of pr‘o;
oc

t
unlihelv

dependents.

HOLIDAY, SNOW &~ICE DELAY

JR

Aam—— Giian & Wo Cowrn
e Gwass of Ws————

COMES " CIEP PRESATION OPRCER. STATS POLCE. AOC CRMERAL PRACTICE DrisOn  889% OF

B e ) L0
R Vs

COuTY PR

0z



—
i)

!

]

.

APPELLATE
A-3490-937¢

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, mm
Plaintiff-Respondent,
v. 14 my

ALIZRTO SCASONE, o
Detendant-Appellant. L b

gubsitted: September 19, 1995 - Decided: Y 1498
Before Judges A.M. Stein and Cuff.

! mmltmmmuzmo!lﬂ
. Jersey, Law Division, Essex County.

[ susan L. Reisner, Public Defender, attorney
for .Tnnt (Steven M. Gilson. Designated
Counsel, of counsel and on the brief).

a— Alberto Scabone, appellant, submitted &

supplemental brief RER A8
clitford J. Winor, Essex County Prosecutor,
uumy.lu respondent (luu;u“l A M}y,

of

ROSSRRS! sounsel
lettes beief).

“.Iﬂmm.
u“‘u'ﬂl“w—“‘
PER CURIAN




elghty yoars vith & forty-year parole ineligibility peried: &
ten-year prison term with & five-year parele disqualifier for the
'..n.u,umun manslaughter; & thirty-year prisoa ters with
a fifteen-year perole ineligibility period for each of the twe
susders; and a ten-yeir prison term vith & five-yeer perole
ineligibility period for the szson. All terms were to rua
consecutively. We affirm.

Defendsat met and begen dating 4 ia Me
land of Uruguay. Taey were married in Wewark an Apzil 1978,
where they resided in & girst floor apartment oa Blooatield

Avenue. At the time of the surd ‘s , Worwa
gsteves, and her 17-year old sister, Yanne! were : |
the apa t with 1ca and their three-year old
son.

At 10317 p.;:., April 2, 1901 the Wewark Pire Departaent
answered a fire alarm call gor the apartment. In the bedroca,
gizetighters discovered the severely busned, fully clothed bodies
of Monica, Yaanet and Worma. Autopsies revealed their deaths
were not caused by the fire, but from sassive internal Blesding

ed bY le stad nds. Appronimately 90 stad vounds
were infiicted, many ia the victime’ backs, with Yasaet receiving
gozty-one, Worma thizty-five and Nonica appronimstely fousteoss.

Raymond Bishet, thea & in the sk Aveen Squad,
Mmmlmmﬂmym. .i-
aerning after the fire, defondest ves consiinred - SRt SN
extensive soarch for his fellowed. The pobien. otarninst W'

; .
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,Mulnlmnmmmmm. and sent a copy of

the case file to the
section in Washingten.

Deferdant ined unapp: ded until years later,
when Elieth Al . ‘s wife, went to
the American Coasulate in Guadalajars, Mexico and intormed
Gilbert Alvares of the ?.5.1. that she believed her husbead was
Alberto Scabone. nlmzmn-muin‘nnﬁtum
mu‘lummnmmtnﬁeu‘hrmnim.

Ana Gonsalaz, Monica’s sister, testified that defendant and
Monica "fought a lot . . . about anything, everything . . - he
was very jealous,” and that in Mazch 1980, she saw defendant hit
Monica in the back with a bottle during a fight, then heard hia

Depar of 1 ) |

threaten to burn their house down. She also testified that while

visiting ‘s par in guay in 1981, she
heard defendant tell Wonica during & fight that "he was going to
kill her and the whole tanily 1ike he . . . alwvays told her.”
Gonsalas testified that she had heard defendant threaten to kill

Nonica "many times” and that & gh he 13 ed tO
burn down the apartasat, she never believed him.
Leopoldo Silva, ‘s in-law, testified that

hlmm-uum'cum!'-plnumtmm
crasy women,” refesring to Monica, Yanaet, 85d NOTRS VRO Wers in-
encther room. 'hea Silva sailed at this statement, defondant

said "you're lavghing. 1'8 talkisy sdeicusly:® ‘Stive vesvsites;




- B = VERC Rt ML

m‘.w:uunvuupuhuuumuuz
Xi11ing the women.

camacho testified she first et defendant and his son in &
Nexico City park the weekend before Baster of April 1901.
ulm-utuldcmuiumcuxmmum:nmm
mmnmnu. hlmm:ueuuuunl
mauum.m;&nmwumtuum

Rodrigues. Ne told her that his wife, si in-law, and
in-1aw had died in a car in the d . Thereat-
ter, defendant and Camacho masried and moved to Mexico.

canacho testified she and began 1tal

problems due to detfendant’'s jealousy. Camacho tried to leave him
on several occasions. gach t'~e he followed her and each time
ho and d to Costa Rica.

she took him back.
ho first P
She discovered their names were listed on

gl ®

icious of when his

parents came to visit.
the plane tickets as Scabone, not Ramires Rodrigues. Camacho
od d was od for the three surders. she

later 1
mmtmmmmmunn. mudolm-um

~ ad

¥ prison in Costa Rica feor sn unrelated )
4 Iaterpol to verify the ion and TeQw ed they not publish
e neme. mcnmmmmn~“>mn
wenseo. mmm.mtﬂt“m.
and she alloved hin to Fetesm to hes. e T

acserding te Camacho, it was dacing thie: ’ T
Wmuuuw.unﬁiﬁ’
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Camacho testified she told defendant that she knew about the
@eaths of his ex-wife and her femily. She said “you’'re going to
do the same thing that you did that one day” and he replied "if I
Rave to do it, 1’'m going to do it again.”

Ns iater told Camacho that he had been tighting with his
girst wife when she grabbed a knife they kept above their bed.
Ne said that he took it from her, wounded her with it, panicked

and killed her. Ne then for ‘s and sister to
come home and killed thea as they separately arrived at the
apartment.

Camacho went to the Mexi police, they did not

seem interested in her story, she went to the American Embassy in
Guadalajara and spoke to Gilbert Alvares. When she met with

Alvazes & second tise, she led ‘s
was u taken into custody.
his 4 at trial. HNe testified

that on the day of the murders he played soccer with some frieads
until 5130 or 6:13 p.m. Ne returned home briefly and them weat
to Blizabeth with two friends. According to defendant, he
returaed heme azound 9140 p.m.

Defendant testified that when he entered the agestseat, the
apartment wes on fire and splattersd with blced. Ne tried te. put
out the fire with some milk. According to defemtins;, "(elvesy-




dond, Mo grabbed his son and left. Shortly thersaftes, he fled
with his son to Nexico.

t denied ng to burn the house down. Ne
explained that when ha said he would "kill" Nomica, it was "just
an exp! ion.” On cross 4 he added, "I just--1 say

uuu-l!'-pmguunlm. too. The French say it when
they make love also. That doesn’t mean you're going to xil1."
Defendant raises the following contentions ia his maia brief

on appeal:

POINT I - THE ADMISSION OF OTNER CRINES, WROWGS OR
ACTS CVIDENCE COWSTITUTES REVERSISLE

A. The Ana Gonsalas-Leopoldo silve
Testimony.

5. The Elieth Camacho Alvarsdo Testi-~
mony.

POINT I - THE ADMISSION OF THE INCULPATORY TRSTI-
WONY OF DEFENDANT'S SECOND WIFE, QOV-

B T PR o

POINT 111 -



TS Eistiarion Of Ris GULLE raom WADER.
™ % (WOT RAISED BELOW).

POINT 1I - “ﬂl uul.:nol OF DEFENDANT'S CORSTITU-

POINT III - THE STATE WAS GUILTY OF PROSECUTORIAL
NISCONDUCT

JURY‘S ABILITY 7O WEIGN THE TESTINONY
(MOT RAISED BELOW).

We affirm. We find the contentions raised by defendant’s
250 A8 supplemental brief to be clearly without merit, R, 3:11-
3(e)(2), and discuss the issues raised in the main brief.

We reject defendant’'s contention that the testimony of
Gonsalaz, Silva and Camacho was inadmissible under N.LR.E.
404(b), which provides:

Evidence of other Crimes, wrongs, OF acts is not admis-

sible to prove the disposition of a person in order to

show that he acted in conformity therewith. Such
evidence may be admitted for other purposes, such as
proof of motive, opportunity, iatent, n:rnum,

plan, knowledge, identity or absence of stake or

accident whea suzh mstters are relevant to 4 material

issue in dispute.

[MalaRaBs 404(D).!

The rule exclitdes such & "when d solely to prove &
defendant’s propessity to commit crime.” S5ARS Y. ALAYSAA. 119
Nl 209, 299 (1909). 1ts purpose is to ensure that defendants
mmmvlmmlymmmmmﬂnmmm
impression that they are ~pad people in genezal.” ANASR.X.
RAZEAscE, 137 Ml 434, 490 (1994).

-7 -
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other

e 148t Of purposes enumerated in Nul.B.Es 404(b) for which

ped-act evidence asy legitimately be intzoduced is "not
such evidence i8 admissible so long &s it is

oxhaustive, - ° °
uwmmolumnm

gelevent to 8 saterial issue
a defendant’s disposition.” IRids (citing AsAse Y. Stavend.

sugzs, 113 Ll at 300)- when seeking to introduce other crimes

evidence, the prosecution sust show the evidence mests the tous-

part test zm—umnmlﬁ:mw.m—wtnm

cotisld, 127 L. 328, 338 11992)1 (1) the other wrong must be

gelevant to 8 material issue in genuine dispute) (2) it sust be
close in time to the otfense

pe clear and convineing; and ()

the probative value must not be outweighed bY the prejudice to

the defendant. 1d, et 338
The trial judge properly pernit
cestimony, ruling that it could be used to show & wgontinuing

enduring nostisity between the parties” and to shovw detendant’s

simalaz in kind ana reasonably
chazged; (3) the evidence must

ted Gonsalas’'s® and Silva‘s

intent and motive.
The judge correctly gelied upon M. 249 Ll

supaz, 336, 372-74 (APP- Div.).
(1991). 1In Roasd, getendant vas accused of nizing somecne to
7he trisl judge permitted testimony that
that he ves

surder his wife.
detendant had 8 stormy zelationship with his wife,

extremely jealous otmuluun- ’M'oﬁu“w
1tselt in tits of rege dusing which be contreated (wer) wish

untounded suspicions, end verbally and physicslly obused MRS i
iy

, 130 Nl 393




Id. ot 340. The judge permitted the victim’'s mother to recount

two incidents ia which the dly his wife
and accused her of being unfaithful. Ibid,
that he denied committing the

wurders, his motive and intent was never in issue. In & homicide
case, the State may always, though it need not, prove motive as
part of its case-in-chief. Sas Moxas v. Pozhes. 3¢ M1, 341, 399
(1957). Defendant was charged with the knowing °r purposeful
msurders of the three women. Intent to kill was en integral and
necessary part of the State’s case.

We agree with the trial judge that the acts testified to by
Gonzalas, Silva and Casacho were reasonably close in time to the
ectual murders as required by State v. Cofisld, SuBEa.

In State v, BARSSUE, 106 M.J. 123, 266 (1907), the New
Jersey Supreme Court held "[t)he temporal remoteness of a past
wrong affects its probative value.” The Court concluded that

and the victis one and one-
half years prior to his D the to death 10 (d)
an ng hestility [the victim] and to that extent

cast() doubt on his claim that the stabbing . . . was unknowing.”
id. st 267. Acgard. Stata v. Donohus, 2 M.l 381, 300 (1949)
(evidence of prior beatings by defendant of his wife, and partic-
uldirly of an incident that occurred eight years before her
susder, was adnissidle "to show malice or 111 will on the pert.of
the accused toward the victia®); w 78 Rigkalia
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eetendant and the ictia that ten of yoars
e the ible to show malice)) AtAtS v. CAXESll.
242 LuLSEBAE. 549, 864 (App. Div. 1990) (while being questioned
for the of his step-daughter, gred to &8

assault on his first wife aleven years eariies. This refezence
was held "so integral & part of his description of his state of
sind at the time of his ission of this that it wves

admissible to show his intent in sttacking his step-daughter.”).

gastif. danisd, 127 Ll 336 (1991).
The fact that Camacho described events which occurzed after

the killings does not render her testimony inadmissible. Bvi-
dence of other wrongs sdmitted under RulR.Rs 404(b) need not

predate the offense at issue. °F of the ion DY
defendant of the same oF similar acts prior to, contemporanecus

with, of t to the in g ion say be prop
sanissible.” 25ase vo Ml 293 Mol SR, 13, 22 (App. Div.
1991), gaxsif. danied 137 Ml 360 (1992). 1In ssasa v, Cotisld,
AUBREA. 127 Ll ot 339-41, the suprems Coust held that if the
sState provided an appropriate 1imiting instruction, it could
properly give evideace that the detendant possessed 11licit drugs
nupu-‘u’nnmsmnmn ke about his po®
sion one moath earller. mmummumu-pu-‘

unﬁmmoln&m.' Id. at 340. : i
he judge limited ‘s te & genersl dessziy-

u-uw'-muuwm_—‘:rﬁ

mnnmmmwn‘mnvmnuﬁu

k
&
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conjunction with an admission about his first wife. Defendant's
"—nmunnmmcuc-u‘o. “32 T have to do
it, I°'m going to do it again,” was improperly used to prove his
fatent to kill his first wife. The P of the was

not to show a to but he was adaitting to
the ia P o 's question: “You're going to
nmmmuuumcunnmm.' Secause the
admission caanot be d from the the trial judge
properly permitted the testimony.

We zeject defendant’s contention that the trial judge’s

L.micany anstruction was ineaequate. No objection was sade to
the instruction. The judge seid: "I will give a curative
i ton 1t ( 1) p one, and if he wants

mmulm&umwwm!wlm, I'm free
to accept whatever he would have and review it with him.” The
standard of review is plain error. B 2:110-2. Sas AlS0 ANASA Y.
gchaz, 270 M.l _SupsE. 349, 271 (App. Div. 1994) ("detendant
expressed his general satisgfaction with the judge’s principal

ge and ot now mvmnlnlpulhuﬂl.
claiming thes to be erTer and prejudicial®). sastis. deniad. 140
Bada 276 (1999). There is no plain errTor.

When other bad act evideace u.-um-.c-nuuo
encoptions to MuLA.E. 404(b), mm“um-“
priate limiting instruction. ;
at 340-41. This iastrection "should B8:
explain. po S




ovidence, with sufficient to the ' xt of the
ﬂouwomjmuwumunmuu
distinction to which it is required to adhere.” SSARR Y.
Asaxens. aupse. 119 Rl at 309.

las’s , the trial judge instructed the

Jury?

Scabone or other fanily members, it's not in any way to
be shown as & pt“llwlﬁlﬂll to commit & crise.

Theretore, because he mey nave committed
betore, Ml!ne&dm‘m&uuuﬁtu
guilty of these charges, too. That's not the wey
system works.

the

In his final instructions, she Judge charged

The State presented testimony uﬂn, the course of

this trial of & nusber of people. some O were
Gonzalas, who is the sister of Nonica scabone and

the sister of Yaanet Esteves, and 1do Silva, &

: Ne
u: rt 1n this indictment ;lultnpumnttu
trial.

You also heard testimony from nr. Scabone’s pres-
:.n:s'm'm made to her hn the course of
their macrriege. ‘u- evidence vas :!un‘ for & very
1imited and specitic purpose.

u!ultnmtnmmolmuw,

that & per ed & pEior on &
specified occasion is Anadmissible to :vn .ﬂm
commit czines

le
for which has been




those words and actions discd

nostility, &n enduring 3 malice or 111-will

out of the maritsl relationship

nimself and Monica sc a-lawe -- and his

in-laws on the ¢ ME. t is directed
three victims in this case; that being

monica Scabone Norma annet Bsteves.

You may consider such evidence solely for this
; that is, in determining & possible motive of
Intent on the part of Mr. Scabone.

You cannot consider that evidence for any other

he ‘Judge added:

There's also for your considezation 4in this case
certain oral statements 81l to have been nade bY
lw.unmum Camacho un‘o.umwnn

and Leopo.do luu'. It is your gunction to deternine
m;n:; or not those statements were, in tact, actually

such DY Neaents of '..&"‘..2;2.’?;‘;".-« Ste believable.

As tO Mll“‘l and silva’s testimony, the charge was
aeither usspecitic ot othervise getective. The judee instructed
the jury that it could consider the testimony a8 proof of deten-
dant's possible motive oF iatent, and not for any other purpose-

ohe trial judge did met correctly explain the pusposs of
Camacho’s testinony, instesd instructing that all %he testimony
was probative of motive and intent. That was aot reversidle

-13 -




egzez. A PTOP 13ing the a8 an
adnission would have pr! 1 wd at’s case, particu-
larly because defendant proclaimed his innocence throughout the

erial. The jury was told it could only consider Camacho’s

as rel t to ‘g intent of sotive, and not &8
probative of his guilt. The error was harmless. R 2110-2.
Detendant argues that the marital cosmunications privilege,
as it existed in 1981, prohibited Camacho’s testimony without his
consent. The trial judge properly rejected this argument.
sefore it was amended in 1992, the sarital-communications
privilege prevented a spouse grom disclosing confidential commu~
nications made during the marriage unless the other spouse
consented. state v, szssple, 138 Rl 406, 414 (19940). The
privilege vas amended by the Legislature on sovesber 17, 19932.
LLS.A, 2M:04A-22, 08 emended by La 1992, Sa 143. The amended
gfule now permits disclosure of idential tions "in &
criminal action of proceeding in which either spouse coasents o
the disclosure.” HalBubs 509. The Legislature provided: "This
act shall take effect immediately and, to the tullest exteat
isteat with constitutional gestrictions, M

cons.
W L 1993, Sa 142 (emphasis

added) . mmmmmmnmm—:

ponind the rule Euite cless. i
he marital-commaications peivilegs, % n oviausnpY: el

mu—-lypuumuwu-w;q whows

e
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chasacterising the threat &8 an

atmiesion would have probably hareed detendant’® case, partice”

peovative of nis guilt.
petendant argues that

told it could only consider camacho’s
gestimony as gelevant to detendant’'s intent oF sotive, and not a8
he error Vel narnless. B 2110-3.

the sarital Mu‘&“ "IVI\.’.

a8 it enisted in 1981, prohibited casacho’s estinony without his

consent - he trial Judge
amended in 19932, the -uul-e.‘ﬂuuou

Mﬂt.‘ .

properly rejected this arguaent.

a spouse frol disclosing mlim‘ll commn
the sarziege unless the other spouse

, 133 | P a0s, 24 (1994) . ™e

pnvum was amended DY the Legisiature on Noveaber 17, 1993,

2A184A-32,

as anended bY | 1993, Sa» 142. The amended

zule oV permits disclosure ot mtu-nun cml“‘.llﬂl "in &

crininal action

or proceeding if

the assclosure.” LLAE. s09.
act shall take etfect a.'ﬂnu\y and, t0 the tullest extent

consistent aieh

which either spouse® consents 0
The Legislature pmuoln This

m“tlﬂl‘ t-lllclloll '

™e uﬂul..-d"uul peivilege: as 88 evidentiesy relt

enclusion or inclusion ot svidence, is
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e man s

aot subject to the constitutional prohibition against L DOAL
fasto leve. Qtate.v. Bathuda. 121 Ml 137, 143-46 (1990). The

ded 1tal icati privilege was properly applied in
a 1993 trial for a crime committed in 1981.

We reject defendint's contention that the sentence imposed
upon him was A will be up unless it
deviates so far from the guidelines as to »ghock the judicisl
conscience.” stass . Both, 93 Rl 334, 364-65 (1904).

In isp the trial judge applied
the sentencing guidelines set forth by the New Jersey suprens
Court in Stats v. Yachough, 190 Ml 627 (1983), saxt. danied,
473 1.4, 1014, 106 S.Ch. 1193, 89 L.Ed,3d 308 (1986). The trial
judge carefully considered all of the 1azhough fectors and
adequately explained how he applied them. WHe balanced the
mitigating tactors—detendant’s lack of & prior record asd his

kidney ptoblm—qunlt the aggravating gactors. He was care-
ful not to double count a8 aggravating factess the viciousness of
the sultiple Me did, ¥ " 4 ‘s
total lack of remorse throughout and attez the trial; the “en-
tremely high, if net & hundred percent” likelihood defendant
woulZ commit another offense; there were multiple victins) the
gire could have harmed others) and the need £or deterreace.
The judye rejected the argusent that the offenses were
cosmitted so closely in time and place as to indicate & single
iod of t behavi .mnmmww
waiting for the thres victins to ceme homs, “MMM
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wesma and Yannet "nad absolutely ne ceatast with ‘e initial

mlﬂtmnusn of Nopj abene.” g8
saase v. Liste 270 Kl fupsz. 169, 176 (dopr ﬁé'.; 1993) (comsec-
utive sentences ““.M “[e}ach [of. the Hn\n:lu-p) was
committed Gt a different time oa 188 4n
circusstances.”). i
he balaacing of aggravats and mitigating fecters vhich
wes the Dasis for imposing comsecutive chras for ail' four comvic-
tions was also properly applied in sentenciry defendant te
saxisus base terms and parole ineligibility periods for each

-

conviction.
Attirmed.

-
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Scabone - sentence 2
THE COURT: We're here on sentence day on State of New

Jersey v. Alberto Scabone on indictment number 80-8-4225.

E Could we just get the formal appearance of all the
parties, including the interpreter for the Public Defender's
Office who is present with us today who was allo‘prufc'nt
throughout the entire trial and proceeding for Mr. Scabone.

MR. HUTH: Your Honor, Thomas C. Huth, Essex County
Prosecutor’s Office, homicide squad.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Kevin A. McLaughlin from the Office
of the Public Defender, Essex Region on behalf of Mr. Scabone.

THE INTERPRETER: Sara Cohen, Spanish interpreter.

THE COURT: Mr. McLaughlin, have you had a chance to
review the presentence report? I know when we last left there
was a motion that ‘was pending to have me recuse myself from
these proceedings. Also there was a number of letters that
were sent in, and I don’t know if Mr. Huth was been kind enough
victims’ family. There’'s a stack that I received just in this
morning’s mail, some from Martha Gonzalez, Anna Gonzalez. I
don’t know if you got copies of all the letters.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, I have not, but if it
please the Court, I'd like to address the motion first, if I
may.

THE COURT: Go right ahead.

MR. McCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, as I know the Court is
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Scabone - sentence 3
aware, Counsel has the highest respect for the integrity and

hoq,lty of this Court. And bluntly, it pains me to have to
renew this motion. But notwithstanding that, I have to renew
the motion, your Honor.

L I believe that this trial was conducted in &5
scrupulously fair manner. It would be to powers greater than I
to determine whether it was done without legal error either on
my part or your part or Mr. Huth’'s part. But, I am going to
renew my application that the Court recuse itself for the
purpose of this sentence.

To recap briefly, your Honor,_at the conclusion of the
trial, after the verdict was taken, the Court took an
opportunity to address the jury with regard to several issues.
One of those issues had to do with the admission in evidence of
the photograph of Monica Scabone at the party. And I was
concerned that the Court felt compelled to explain the
admission of that photo into evidence and two, what may have
happened or may not have happened at or about the time that the
pho:oérlph was taken.

But, of more concern was the Court’s assurance to the
jury, at that time, that Mr. Scabone would be receiving, and
I'm paraphrasing, Judge, I’'ll rely on the record for any appeal
purposes, you did assure the jury that, and again by

paraphrase, if you had any say in the matter, that Mr. Scabone
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would be receiving the maximum sentence for each of the

offenses.

I was concerned at the time, your Honor, that the
Court had pre-judged this matter prior to receiving the
presentence investigation report, that the Court may :h’lv.
gotten caught up in the emotion and the excitement of the
trial. I asked, at that time, that the Court consider recusing
itself from imposing sentence in this matter. 'And again, so
it's clear, your Honor, I have the utmost respect for this
Court, for both its integrity and its dignity and its honesty.

I know that the Court always strives to impose
sentence or a ruling in accordance with the law. But, I am
concerned that the Court may have become unwittingly
emotionally caught up in this matter. And, I wonder if it is
perhaps not better, under all of the circumstances, even if

it’s only to avoid the appearance of a problem, that th; Court

| recuse itself from imposing this sentence. I'm going to ask

the Court to do that and to recommend that the sentence be
transferred either to the assignment judge for reassignment or
this Cour': being the executive judge for the floor perhaps to
be reassigned to another judge here on the floor,

THE COURT: Mr. Huth. -

MR. HUTH: Just briefly. I would object to said

motion primarily b the ts made by the Court, and I

want the record to be clear on this, were made after, number
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Scabone - sentence . 5
one, the verdict came out. Number two, after the jury was

polled as to a unanimous verdict. And number three, after ':ho
Court gave its discharging instructions to the jury. It was at
that point, once the verdict was "sealed"” that the Court made
comments to the jurors and told the jurors ccrtaﬁn thﬁngl in
the case that they were not allowed to hear during the course
of the deliberation.

I find nothing wrong with that. Number one is that I
think the jury should be entitled to hear certain things that
were withheld from them during the course of their
deliberations, after they have deliberated and rendered a
verdict. So, there has been no prejudicc, whatsoever, to the
jury. Number two, I can’t understand how your Honor could
possibly prejudice himself by voicing opinions that he had
after hearing 2 weeks of testimony of this trial.

This trial was one of the most emotional ordeals I

pretend that it doesn’'t effect you is inhuman. You voiced
concerns or strike that, you voiced your emotions. I find
nothing wrong with that. In the meantime you have had an
opportunity to look at a presentence report. You will have an
opportunity to listen to Counsel and possibly the defendant if
he wishes to talk and you will have an opportunity to listen to
family members. And I am confident that the Court can make its

decision based upon that.
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Scabone - sentence 6
I jusc don’t think that you can sit up there in a

vacuum and listen and go through an ordeal like this and not
huv;. some opinion and not have some feeling about it. I do not
think that will cloud your judgment regarding today's
nﬂgf,oncing.

It was a very emotional trial. It was a very
upsetting trial for everyone involved. And I kind of thought
that your comments were appropriate. It's because of that,
Judge, I don't think you should recuse yourself.

THE COURT: Okay. When Mr. McLaughlin did in fact
make the motion, I did check up on the statutes and the court
rule that does apply. And just for pu;polcl of an appellate
tribunal reviewing this proceeding, because I'm not going to
recuse myself, I did, in fact, review the court rules,
including but not limited to rule 1:12-1. And some of the

applicable case law including but not limited to State vs.

see absolutely no reason, either in case law or in the court
rules, for me to recuse myself from these proceedings.

I sort of try to make sure that everybody gets a fair
trial in this Court and I think that’s why the attorneys like
to try trials up here. And many of the rules that were
presented during the course of the case I know upset the
Prosecutor’'s Office because a lot of them were very, very

favorable to Mr. Scabone, especially including a number of the
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Scabone - sentence 7
ph graphs and a ber of evidence regarding prior beatings

and abuse by Mr. Scabone upon Mrs. Scabone that were withheld
from the jury.

I always try to let my jurors know reasons for delays
in.trial and what went on in there absences at side bars. I
think jury members, after a verdict is in fact sealed, is
entitled to know a little bit about the case, what went on and
certain reasons for certain things that were done during the
course of the case. And that’s what I atempted to do in this
case.

So, I fully intend to go forward with the sentencing
today. Mr. McLaughlin has preserved :50 rights of Mr. Scabone
godly in the event that an appellate tribunal disagrees with my
philosophy. And assuming it will be upheld, as of today, I
have no intention of having this case be reassigned to another
judge because I don’t think anything was done improper in this

Mr. McLaughlin, I know we initially discussed about
some of the letters. I don’'t know if there was a whole sheaf
of documents that came in in today’s mail. I don’t know if you
had a chance, all from family members. Again every one of the
letters was very emotionally written, all asking for the
maximum custodial sentence to be imposed on Mr. Scabone.

In fairness to you, I don’t know if you need a chance

to look at each and every letter. They basically asked the
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Scabone - sentence 8
Court not to shave any time off of Mr. Scabone's possible

exposure and sentence him to the maximum under the statute that
n; '1n effect back when this incident occurred, which was the
old homicide statute. Subsequent to the date of the offense,
t__h! .statute was amended to a much higher degree c_:t ngﬁolurc.
But Mr. Scabone’s coming under the old statute.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, I had not had an
opportunity to review the letters but I can indicate to the
Court that it’s not necessary for me to review them prior to
the imposition of sentence. I would appreciate the opportunity

to review them perhaps after the sentence proceeding. But

counsel does not feel that there could be anything in the
letters that would provide the basis for some legal objection. |
Family members are absolutely entitled to express their
feelings. And in a case such as this, one would expect those
feelings to be strong and emotiocnal.
it’s not necessary that we review them prior to the imposition
of sentence.

THE COURT: No problem. We’ll make you up a complete
xeroxed set of documents. And, again, none of the documents
are in mitigation of Mr. Scabone's nn.t.ncc, but to the
opposite. They’re all asking for the maximum sentence to be
imposed upon Mr. Scabone.

MR. HUTH: Judge, just for the record, I told family
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Scabone - sentence 9
members if they wish to write letters to send them directly to

the Court. I must have not seen the substance of those letters
oit}ur. So if I had them I would have given them to Mr.
McLaughlin.

THE COURT: No problem. Truthfully the mailman jusc
came before we came out. I just got them and they were for Mr.
Scabone so I brought them out with me.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: I've had an opportunity to review the
presentence investigation report with Mr. Scabone. We find it
to be accurate and sufficient for the purpose of sentence. I
would make note of the following correction, a minor one at
that, your Honor. On page 1 of the -o;::ion entitled Uniform
Defendant Intake which is approximately the seventh page in the
report, the report is pagenated, at least the copy that I have,
Mr. Scabone’s birth date is indicated as being 10/5/53 there.
On the face page of the report is the true birthdate of 11/5/54
jiasrindicated. """ """ TTC

THE COURT: Note that correction.

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Other than that, we find the report
to be accurate sufficient for the ﬁurpou of sentence.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. McLaughlin, any statements
you’d like to make on behalf of Mr. Scabone? Anything Mr.
Scabone himself would like the Court to hear?

MR. MCLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, I would like to address

the Court, if I may, with regard to the imposition of sentence.
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Scabone - sentence 2 10
THE COURT: Sure.

MR. McLAUGHLIN: Your Honor, I would note first that
inspite of the commentary during the course of trial and prior
to the trial, no one has seen fit to adduce any evidence that
Mr. .Scabone has ever been accused of or convicted of ‘any .
criminal conduct anywhere ocutside of the United States. The
prior adult criminal history indicates a charge with an arrest
date of March 31, 1980 that was dismissed one month, I'm sorry,
the next day, I apologize, according to the report and then
this matter appears.

There’'s no indication of any juvenile history. And as
nearly as I can tell, there’'s no evidence of any problems with
the law cutside of the United States. There may well be, but I
don’'t have competent documentation to that effect and nor does
the Court. So, preliminarily I'm addressing that matter. Mr.
Scabone has no prior indictable convictions. Has no prior

I should state, your Honor, that in the text of the
report, Mr. Scabone indicates that he is, in fact, innocent.
And, in essence, re-alleges that which he alleged in his
testimony at trial. I do not, in any way, want the Court to
feel that I am in any way, that he is, in any way, coming away
from his assertion of innocence. I have to address the Court
based on the conviction that was returned by this jury.

If I make references to acts committed to Mr. Scabore,
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actributed to Mr. Scabone, those will be obviously because the

1u€! has convicted him of those. I don’t want anyone to feel
that 1 have in any way conceded that he is in fact guilty of
these offenses. But, Mr. Scabone understands, as does counsel,
he_is convicted of these offenses and he will ho.lcnqincod on
them.

Given that, your Honor, I think that we should move to
what is the appropriate sentence. Obviously one of the first
things that we would want to deal with in the imposition of the
sentence under circumstances such as this is the double ;
counting of aggravating factors. One of the problems, if you
will, with convictions for homicide and its subspecies is that
those convictions presume the death of the victim. And,
obviously the Court is aware that the seriousness of the harm
is simply not something that we can conside~ when the verdict

is some form of homicide.

pecple dead. Mr. Scabone stands convicted of causing those
deaths. I think the most salient point to be considered in
imposing sentence is what were the circumstances surrounding
the commission of the crime. Again, assuming for the purpose
of this argument that Mr. Scabone committed the crimes, the
State, during the trial, through Miss Camacho and through
attempts to characterize circumstantial evidence, I‘'m sure, is

going to urge upon the Court that Mr. Scabone, cold-blocdedly
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Scabone - sentence 12
and without feeling of any kind, executed Norma and Yanette.

That's not so, your Honor. That is simply not so. It
flies in the face of the proofs in this case. It flies in the
face of the verdict in count 1. Your Honor, the State can’'t
haye it both ways, either Mr. Scabone was subject.to ,ﬁunu of
temper during which he lost control, or he’s a cold-blooded
murderer, one or the other.

Now, they got their conviction based on theory, number
1. That'’s how they got it, that he would fly into a rage and
abuse his wife. And in point of fact he flew into a rage on
this date and ultimately caused her death. I guess the State
will urge that he then had some period of time to consider what
he would do next. T should indicate to the Court that there's
no proof of that whatscever. It would appear that the jury

agreed the killing of Monica Scabone was done in the heat of

passion pursuant to adequate provocation. And I think that in

as well.

They say it happened that way, Judge. I don’'t say it.
Mr. Huth doun'.t say it. The jury says it. Heat .ot passion,
adequate provocation.

Now, do the subsequent deaths, the ones for which the
jury returned verdicts of murder, do we characterize those as
being committed after a sufficient period of time had passed to

allow Mr. Scabone to rationally think through what had
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happened? I guggest, your Honor, that the excitement of the

one killing and the irrationality that in fact caused it to
oc;ux in the first instance, was carried over. He should never
have killed Monica. That's obvious.
e Obviously he should never have killed Yfpo:gi or
Norma. But, to assume that the one was done in the heat of
passion and the other one was done upon cold passion, it’'s just
an assumption. It’'s a continuation, obviously a continuation
of agitated state that the jury felt it was not appropriate to
convict of passion provocation manslaughter. We accept that
verdict. But, I've read Mr. Huth’s sentence memorandum, Judge.
He wants you to give 4 consecutive nol; to nose sentences. He
wants you to give 30 with 15, 30 with 15, that’s 60 with 30.
Then he’d like you to give 10 with S to count one,
that would be 70 with 35, and then we got a second degree

arson. What the heck, we’ll throw in another 10 with 5 for

" that. That would be 80 With 40. "A geénteel sufficiency under

anybody’s criteria. But, your Honor, that fails to take into

what happ d. Simply running these sentences
consecutive will satisfy the blood lust that runs in all of our
veins to some extent or another. !

It would certainly, I don’t think it would satisfy the
family members of the deceased victims. But it’s the maximum

that you can give and that’s what they’d have to live with.

And certainly that’s what they want you to give. But, I think




10
11
12
13

14

20

21

22

23

24

Scabone - sentence 14
your Honor needs to take a longer look at this incident. This

was one incident. This was not a series of incidents. This
was one circumstance from the moment the knife was wielded
against Monica Scabone -- if in fact she was the first person
killed, I think we have to accept that based on yhn: ﬁh- jury
verdict is -- until the time that the fire was set.

If you choose to take a series of snap shots then it's

very easy to imp ive t . It‘s simple. These
are discreet events. Your Honor, I don’'t think the Court
believes that these are discreet events. I think the Court
should be well satisfied that this was something that took
place, at least in Mr. Scabone's mind,.all at once in a jumble.
I'm not looking to excuse the taking of human life. It's
inexcusable at any level and we are without power to seek the
appropriate retribution.

Your Honor, I‘m not a particularly religious person
"but T do believe iﬂii_iﬁi£>béﬁé§ ;E;:}'Bﬁii.ih_bh;-biicc and
it’s not here in this courtroom. A higher authority will
ultimately judge Mr. Scabone. We have to do our job now.

I am going to urge upon the Court that the Court see
thie for what it really was, which is one ongoing course of
conduct. One incident all provoked by the same, unju.:itiabl;
perhaps, but the same rage.

Mr. Scabone indicates in the presentence report that

he suffers from depression. He believes his mental health to
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be poor. There's certainly evidence in the trial testimony

:h,t others believed that he was in need of psychiatric help.
There’'s evidence that he was confined to a psychiatric
institution. I think there’'s evidence that he escaped from
that institution. To characterize Mr. Scabone ag.bogdg a.
dangerous psychotic on the one hand and a cool dispassionate
killer in the other, would be for the simple expedience of
giving him the maximum, Judge. It wouldn’t reflect what is
true. It’'s either one or the other.

The real truth is, your Honor, that these sentences
should be run concurrent to one another and that presents a
problem for us, for the Court, for the litigants. You see,
we’'ve gotten used to the new 2C, Judge. Murderers now get 30
years without parole. That's what they get. That's what the
law says they get. But, justice and the law on April of 1981
provided that murder was 30 with 15. That was the law and that
was the maximum then, Judge.

All the discussion in Mr. Huth’s sentence memo about
Yarborough is in some measure unnecessary. No one can deny
that there are 3 dead bodicl,AB human beings are gone. But,
the ‘imposition of this sentence should take into account more
than that lust for punishment. Thinking persons reviewing the
totality of this case cannot help but conclude that all of this
took place in one jumble. Again, I‘m not trying to justify it

but I think it’s important to understand that these are not
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Scabone - sentence 18
cold and dispassionate acts that are independent of one:

another. Bad decision making, oh absolutely, to the point of
thIng human life, not to be rationally explained.

But, I didn‘t think that one could conclude that Mr.
Scabone was being irrational at the time. Had it been that
everyone recognized how dangerous his bursts of écmpcz were
previous, if he had gotten some treatment, I can’'t guess at
that, Judge. But I hope the Court’s not going to guess at some
cold and dispassionate, you know, this theory of the case where
he kills his wife and then he sits there tapping the knife on
his hand until the rest of the family mgmbo:u get home.

There’s certainly an intorcnc; of that from the
testimony of Camach=. But it’'s just that, it’'s only an
inference, Judge. And even if it were so, that still would not
mean that Mr. Scabone had returned to his right senses in time
to prevent those 2 additional killings. It is wholely
- appropriate -for-this -Court to- impose concurrent sentence;
Judge, your Honor. Yarborough says you should generally
impose, if the Court feels it’'s appropriate, 2 consecutive, the
more serious.

But, Yarborough also says that one should look at
whether it was simply one incident. Whether it’'s derivative of
the same excitement that caused the jury to convict for passion
provocation in the first instance.

I'm not trying to excuse the death of Mr. Scabone's
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mother-in-law and sister-in-law, but, your Hénor, I think 4

ive is prep under the circumstances.
It ;ny leave some feeling a little cold, but :h’: may well be
because we’'ve become used to the more serious punishments that
:bg,logitll:uro subsequently enacted. I think we need to
divorce ourselves from that, Judge. We need to éo back to 1981
when the law was 30 with 1S.

I would ask the Court to impose a sentence in toto of
30 years with a 15 year period of parole ineligibility. And I
don‘t say that lightly, your Honor. Because if the Court chose
to run the 4 counts concurrent to one another, you don’t have
to give 30 with 15. Mr. Scabone's go:'nc priors. There are
any number of mitigating factors that could apply to Mr.

Scabone, not the least of which is that he may not have been in

full control of his faculties at the time, your Honor.

Thirty with 15 back in those days, if you had a 18 or
19-year-old defendant in front of you and you thought that he
had made a dreadful mistake, you didn’t have to give him 30
with 15. You could have given him a flat 20. Now, I'm saying
all right go ahead, give Mr. Scabone the 30 with 15, take into
account the fact that those last 2 killings did not have to
happen. Take into account, as I'm sure the State will remind
you, that there were any number of stab wounds that way
exceeded the number required to end life.

There are some things about this case that are




10

11

* 12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Scabone - sentence
unpleasant that might lead the Court to impose a sentence

greater than the presumptive sentence. But, 4 consecutive
un.:.tncu is greater than any rational sentence, your Honor.
Four consecutive sentences is not called for. It's not, Jjust
under the circumstances.. 7

I suspect that if the Court does impose the sentence
of 30 years with a 15 year period of parole ineligibility, that
you will have taken into account those aggravating factors in
providing, one, not only a period of parole ineligibility, but
the maximum period of parole ineligibility. Your Honor, I
think that I will conclude my comments at that point. Thank
you, your Honor. ‘

THE COURT: Mr. Scabone, is there anything that you'd
like to say to the Court before we impose sentences? There are
a lot of members of the Estevez family present in the first 2
rows.

MR. SCABONE: I think Mr. McLaughlin defended me in
the right way that it should have been done.

THE INTERPRETER: Your Honor, may I ask Mr. Scabone
for one word, to clarify one word?

MR. SCABONE: If there were certain evidence, it would
have been different to begin with. Mrs. Anna in 1989 she never
speak.

THE COURT: I'm sorry, Mr. Scabone, you’'ve got to

speak very slow, Mr. Scabone, because of the interpreter.
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MR. SCABONE: Because for me I say really fast. Mrs.

Anna in cthe statement of 1981 --

THE COURT: Madam Interpreter, will you tell him while
you're interpreting he has to stay quiet so we can get what
you're saying. Madam Interpreter, can you put or_x‘:hq' 'ncord
what you can recall he just said?

THE INTERPRETER: I just mentioned to Mr. Scabone that
while I‘'m speaking he remain quite.

THE COURT: What would you like us to know because you
have to go very slowly.

MR. SCABONE: Excuse me.

THE COURT: That's okay. When the interpreter is
interpreting for our reporter here, you can’t continue to keep
talking or go on to a new statement because we’'re still doing
the old statement.

MR. SCABONE: Mrs. Anna in 1981, she never mentioned
about the fire. In 1989 it was taken another statement from
her but she never mentioned again about the fire. Let's say if
I killed my wife, I kill Norma, I kill Yanette, I kill Fito, I
kill the Peruvian and I give my car to them so they can go to
work, that’'s something stupid. Excuse me. Mrs. Halea, at the
end, she say that the boy knows everything. He remembers :
everything. You may believe, you may think that I'm guilty,
but this is not about thinking, but it’s about believing. I

may continue for a long time.
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THE COURT: Anything you’'ve got to say, Mr. Scabene,

now is your chance to say it.
- MR. SCABONE: Well, I want to appeal and I'm going to
appeal. If I think that it was not just, excuse me, I'm
smiling, what else, many more things, what can I .uy.." If Mr.
Nelson was allowed to give a statement, he collaborated with
police. If you check the reports you can see, I'm not going to
say that I've never said I'm going to kill you. What's more, I
always say, I mentioned in my cell, I came back from vacation
with Monica. She came the 15th. I came, we came back from
vacation. I came back from vacation u_td I killed a woman.
This is not the case but anyway here I am. I’'m going to appeal
and let’'s see what’'s going to happen.

THE COURT: After today Mr. McLaughlin will file the
nccolll;'y papers. You have 45 days from today’'s date, Mr.
Scabone. Mr. McLaughlin will protect your interest by filing
the appeal.

MR. SCABONE: Thank you and excuse me.

THE COURT: Mr. Huth, I see a number of the members of
Estevez family and some of the other family members and friends
here today.

MR. HUTH: Judge, what I'd like to do is just address
some legal issues and then I‘d like to have them talk.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. HUTH: Judge, what was adduced during the course
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of trial from Elliot Cammaroto Camacho was Alberto Scabbne told

him that he had a fight with his wife and during the course of
:h. fight he told her that she grabbed the knife and then he
grabbed the knife from her and he stabbed her. That is
r_g_g],n:nd in the jury’s verdict. But, he also ti.l,ll ﬁn: that
he kills Norma, the mother, the 59-year-old mother and
19-year-old Yanette as they come into the apartment. This is
what he tells her.

This is not a killing that is done all at once and the
jury reflected that in their verdict. They said passion
provocation for Monica Scabone and purposeful or knowing murder
for both Yanette Estevez and Norma E-t;voz. So I submic,
Judge, that these are separate and distinct acts.

The argument that Mr. McLaughlin is making to urge
concurrent terms with all of these offenses, the question, in
my mind is, well, whose crime does he get the 30 years with 15
years on? 1Is it because of killing Yanette Estevez or is it
because of killing Norma Estevez? Where do you fit the
aggravated arson in? Where do you fit the life of Monica
Scabone in that sentencing scheme? What he’'s asking for,
basically, is a free crime. Give me one, run the others
concurrent and I‘m basically going to get free crimes for 2
bodies.

I submit, Judge, that that flies against the law that

I have submitted in my sentencing memo. Again, Judge, the
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crimes have different Purposes. They are separate and distinct

acts. The first is a passion provocation manslaughter and the
,oébnd 2 are purposeful or knowing murder probably to cover up
his acts. That wasn’'t enunciated, but the reference is there.
The .inference can be drawn. i

Norma Estevez was killed with her jacket on and her
shoes on. Nineteen year old Yanette was killed fully clothed
with her shoes on. These women, the Court can draw an
inference, had come into the apartment and that's what they met
in the apartment. Then he takes the women, puts 2 twin beds
together, places them on the twin beds, lights them on fire
with a flammable liquid, hence the lgq?lvn:cd arson.

Regardinag the aggravated arson, we have a whole
separate class of victims. Besides the fact that he’'s burning
his own premises, we have the Melillo family that lives on the
second and third floors. They are forced out of their house
because of this fire.

So, regarding the imposition of consecutive versus
concurrent sentences, I'm going to ask the Court to consider
the opinion of State vs. Sebastian Montouri where it is clearly
laid ocut in that case where the imposition of 3 consecutive
life sentences for a triple homicide that occurred over a
single time period in an apartment on South Orange Avenue here
in Newark, very similar circumstances, 3 pecple killed around

the same time within a single dwelling, the Court gave 3
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consecutive life sentences.

The rationale relied on was because of the unique
l!‘;ﬂl of murder, the present case is not controlled by State
va. Yarborough. So when you're talking about consecutive
vVersus cocncurrent sentences, the Supreme Court, the Apbolln:.
Division, has said that murder holds a different type of light.
Specifically it states that in State vs. Zarinski, 75 N.J. 101
on page 107, and I quote, "the legislature has not expressly or
inferentially suggested an intent to reduce the punishment for
those convicted of multiple murders.”

These are 3 murders. Now, one is a murder committed
in the heat of passion but they are 3 Qurdoro. It goes on to
say that the legic-lators’ intent that a defendant may be
subject to a life term for every homicide of which he is found
guilty. So, the case law is there. It takes homicide and it
separates it from every other offense as it should.

Your Honor, that brings us to the point where now you
must make a determination whether or not you can impose the
maximum for each of these offenses and that is going to be
based upon the aggrlvaiing factors. Do the aggravating factors
outweigh the mitigating factors under 2C:44-1. I submit that
aggravating factor number 1 does apply. Even though this is a
murder and you can’t say that the gravity of harm inflicted the
deaths, I agree with that. However, we’'re talking about a

situation where these 3 women were stabbed a total of 96 times
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and then the desecration on the women because their bodies were

thrown on the bed, doused where a flammable fluid and lit on
fire.

So there is a specially heinous nature to this
particular offense. That’'s why I submit that lgg;avqiing
factor number 1 does apply. Aggravating factor number 2, the
gravity and seriousness of the harm inflicted on the victim,
including whether or not the defendant knew or ;o-lonlbly
should have known that the victim of the offense was
particularly vulnerable to advanced age. Norma Estevez was 59
years old. There is an aggravating facter in number 12 that
does not apply because if Norma Estevez was 60, aggravating
factor number 12 does apply.

So, we’'re talking about a 59-year-old woman who,
because of her advanced age, probably cannot defend herself
like a younger woman could, and that should count as an
aggravating factor. Aggravating factor number 3, the risk that
the defendant will commit another offense. Judge, you even
heard evidence of that. I’'m not talking about a conviction,
but you heard Elliot Cammaroto Camacho say that this guy had
told her that he was going to kill her just like he killed hiq
family in New Jersey. And she asked him really, like the way
you would do to your family in New Jersey and he said yes, if I
have to, I will.

So there's a risk that he’'s going to do it again.
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Aggravating factor number 9 is a need for deterrence.

as |

I mean,
I qfn't even have to address that. This type of conduct has to
be deterred.

Judge, I submit that because of the aggravating
fg;ierl outweigh the mitigating factors number 1ﬂ,:hqchurt can
impose the ma;lmum terms. We're talking about a 10-year period
for the manslaughter with S years without parocle. A 10-year
period for the aggravated arson with S years without parcle and
then a 30-year term with 15 years without parole for each of
the murders.

What I'm asking the Court to impose is a total term of
80 years with 40 years without parole because of these
offenses. Judge, it’'s at this moment I would ask that the
Estevez family and friends be allowed to address the Court.

THE COURT: Sure. Just for the purposes of the
proceedings, we have an official court interpreter here with
us, Lauren Egbert from the A.0.C.. Ma‘am, could you give us
your name and spell it for us please.

MARTHA GONZALEZ, SHWORN.
'THE COURT: What would you like to tell us?

MS. GONZALEZ: Your Honor, I want to tell you that my

life, since the second of April of 1981, to this date, has been
a true hell. In a constant depression I have been unable to
resign myself to the unjust loss of my mother and my beloved

sisters. Your Honor, this man who is in front of us is a man
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without scruples, without feelings, without a heart.

At this
moment I have pleaded with God all these years asking for

ju;-uco.

Today I ask, I plead with your Honor in the name of my
sipter Anna Gonzalez, in the name of Elliot Alverado and in my
own name that you have no pity, just as he had no. pity with my
loved ones. And that you give him the maximum sentence. If ic
is possible, the electric chair, although this would not repay
the damage that he’'s done to us. I want also to thank the
ladies and gentlemen of the jury for their correct verdict.
Thank you. 1

Your Honor, in your hands is .:h. peace of mind of all
of us. That's all. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Miss Gonzalez.

MR. HUTH: There's a family friend who would like to
talk.

THE COURT: Sure. Ma’am, could you give us your name?
ELENA MAZZA, SWORN.

THE COURT: You were there for almost the whole trial,
right?

MS. MAZZA: Yes. Your Honor. Yanette was my best
friend, my very close, we shared many good times together.
March 1981 was supposed to be the happiest time of my life. I
share the happiness with Yanette at my wedding. That was the

last time I saw her, two weeks before the murders. There
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aren’'t enough words to express my feelings for her and the

tm_i_ly. Alberto Scabone not only tock their lives in a brutal

way, but he also took away a piece of all of us.

I prey to God all these years that this day would come '

tIue. Your Honor, I ask you to give him the maximum _‘l'cnnnco
allowed by the law, even though that still is not enough to
bring them back to us. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Miss Mazza.

MR. HUTH: Your Honor, that is the conclusion of my
legal comments. I submit that the law is clear, especially

dealing with these types of off. , that ive

sentences are not only allowed, they’'re warranted.

Regarding the aggravated arson, that is cbviously a
separate and distiict act because of the separate class of
victims involved in that case. There’s just one last thing
that I have to say here, I just can’'t imagine, I cannot imagine
what these women went through on April the 1st of 1981 when
this guy attacked them like that. I can’t imagine the horror
scene that this guy inflicted on them as they walked into their
apartment. I mean, that’s just beyond comprehension what that
scene must have been like. That had to be the most horrible
thing in the world.

Judge, this case cries out for justice. This case
cries out for the absolute maximum term that the Court can give

this guy because he’s going to do it again. He’'s done it
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before and he has absolutely no remorse, no remorse whatsoever

for the deaths of these 3 women. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. This was, in fact, a 2-week jury
trial before this Court. Mr. Scabone was found guilty on count
1 ta passion provocation manslaughter of the moth.ar-iln'-lav,
S$9-year-old Monica Scabone. On count number 2 he was found
guilty of murder, purposeful and knowingly, of a sister-in-law
19-year-old Yanette Estevez. Count number 3, he was likewise
found guilty of the knowing and purposeful murder of his
mother-in-law Norma Estevez on count 1 was passion provocation
of his wife Monica Scabone. The fourth and final count,
separate charge regarding the fact :ha; a fire was set
allegedly to cover the crimes, Mr. Scabone was convicted by the
jury of second degree arson.

As already indicated, Mr. Scabone now is 40 years of
age. This incident goes back many, many years, April 2, 1981.
For those not familiar with the facts of the case, Mr. Scabone,
shortly after the commission of the offense, fled the United
States of America and basically was on the run from law
enforcement authorities. An indictment was returned very
shortly after the date of the incidents on April 2, 19681, but
through the benefit of the Interpol International Police
Network, Mr. Scabone was ultimately arrested in Central America
and returned to this country shortly before the time of this

trial.
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On April 2, 1981, I totally agree with the jury's

verdict, Mr. Scabone did brutally stab and kill his wife Monica
!clﬁSnn. He then killed, after a passage of time, his
mother-in-law and then a 19-year-old Yanette Estevez who had
:Pg,miu!ortunc of coming home early from school. .Enqﬁ victim
was stabbed numerocus times, including stab wounds to the back.

I think an especially important highlight and piece of
evidence for the jury to consider, it was in fact brought out
that there was a total of 93 stab wounds allocated among those
3 poor victims. It was also brought out during the course of
the trial that especially for the victims who were killed after
Monica Scabone, in the scenario as the killings were provided
by Mr. Scabone’s present wife, Miss Elliot Alverado, and she
indicated that Mr. Scabone said after killing his wife Monica
Scabone, he then lay in wait for his mother-in-law and his
sister-in-law.

That version of the situation was verified in many
respects by the coroner’s report indicating that the bodies of
Yanette Estevez and Norma Estevez were in fact fully clothed.
People were wearing their street shoes and they had
windbreakers on. They were fully clothed after just having
come in from outdoors into their family apartment which they
thought was a safe place and unfortunately for them Mr. Scabone
lay in wait for them at that time. And, as a result of that,

they were all killed there.
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After the murders, Mr. Scabone, again in an attempt to

flee the scene and to evade arrest, set fire to the family
lpl;‘tll\.nt. That’'s bad enough, number one. But that was a
multi-family dwelling at 239 Bloomfield Avenue. That action, .
not .even considering the injuries that possibly <.:ou1¢ ».hnvo been |
sustained by the arriving or responding fire fighters or
firemen caught if a floor collapsed at that building, but also
was a multiple dwelling with other family members of other
tenants living in that building.

Mr. Scabone, during the course of the trial as he

shown on April 2, 1981, had no remorse on April 2 for anybody.
And he had no remorse for anybody ovon. up to and including the
present day. In fact, during the course of his
cross-examination on the stand Mr. Scabone, I can’t recount the
number of times Mr. Scabone laughed.
He thought he was having a good time here testifying in his own
behalf.

Mr. McLaughlin did an excellent job and so did Mr.
Huth, for that matter, but Mr. McLaughlin gave him a million
dollars defense in this case. The only person, Mr. Scabone is
looking for someone to blame for a guilty verdict in this case
is his own testimony from the witness stand because if anybody
sunk his own ship, Mr. Scabone did an admirable job in front of
the jury laughing and joking his way to a long custodial

sentence and he will have a long time to think about what he
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did during the course of this trial and what he did back in

1981.

There obviously is a presumption of incarceration. We
have 3 separate deaths. These are first degree offenses and
a}!q second degree offenses. I'm familiar with 511 gﬁo facts
of the case. I've also reviewed Mr. Scabone's eligibility for
release on parole. The mitigating factors that do apply, I
agree with Mr. McLaughlin, we heard mention during the course
of the trial that Mr. Scabone has been involved with a number
of international law enforcement bodies and a number of
different countries. But, not one iota of proof has been

presented in the way of certified abstract. So as for as I'm

d, Mr. Scab has no prior record.

Obviously Mr. Scabone’'s conduct is the result of
circumstances unlikely to reoccur. That's an obvious one when
the victims are deceased. They're never going to be back on

this earth with us again. In regard to mitigating factor

ber 11, Mr, Scab has a kidney medical problem which will
require attention in the institution, but that’'s something that
can be addressed during his incarceration.

In regard to the aggravating factors, I am mindful of
the double counting requirement and criteria. So for these
reasons, I'm not going to count in aggravating factor numbers 1
and 2 on our list concerning circumstances being heinous and

cruel involving the stab wounds. Likewise, in fact, with
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Monica Estevez had been stabbed a number of times and that his

mother-in-law Norma was 59 years of age.

Again, I don’'t want to be accused of double counting
any of the factors, so this sentence is not in any way based on
lgggnvn:ing factor number 1 or 2. Number 3, obviqully the risk
:;;c Mr. Scabone will commit another offense. !.thiﬂk the
likelihood is extremely high, if not a hundred percent certain
that that aggravating factor applies to this case. Aggravating
factor number 6, the seriousness of the offense.

We have 3 separate victims plus the arson. So, easily
other people could have been injured as a result of Mr.
Scabone’s conduct other than the 3 individuall of his own
family who in fact were brutally murdered by him/ And,
lﬁg:lVlting factor number 9, the need for detexrence.

The fact that 3 human lives are lost, I don’t think
needs to be stated anymore on the record that that obviously is

d that incur. 1It’s clear that the

aggravating factor clearly preponderate and I‘m clearly

convinced that those aggravating factors substantially outweigh

the mitigating factors requiring consecutive discretionary

minimum terms on this case. There’'s no Graves aspects to this

case for a number of reasons, but including the fact that

there’'s no operable weapon, it was a knife that was utilized.
At the time of the commission of the crime it was

already pointed out by Mr. McLaughlin in April of 1981 the code
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of criminal justice was different than it is today. The murder

statute, at that time, provided that murder is a crime of the
first degree. But a person convicted of murder may be
sentenced by the Court, number 1, to a term of 30 years of
which the person must serve 15 years before boing..n.g'ibh for
parole. Or number 2, as in the crime of the first degree,
except that the maximum term for such a crime of the first
degree shall be 30 years.

I've also reviewed the sentencing guidelines of State
vs. Yarborough. We’'ve had a recent legislative change in the
Yarborough rule, but that legislative b_ill did not address
whether it would apply retroactively o-r prospectively. So
rather than look for an appealable issue, I'm going to consider
that Yarborough still applies to this situation, even though

that statute is no longer in effect and I am sentencing Mr.

Scab in d with the Yarborough guidelines.

Those guidelines are, number 1, that there are no free
crimes in this system for which the punishment should fit the
crime. Number 2, the reasons for imposing either consecutive
or concurro‘nt sentences should be separately stated on the
record in our decision. And some of the reasons to be
considered by the Court should include facts relating to the
crimes including under Subsection A, the crimes and their
objectives were predominantly independent of each other. B,

that the crimes involved separate acts of violence or threats
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of violence. C, the crimes were committed at different times

Or separate places rather than being committed so closely in
tiu; and place as to indicate a single period of aberrant
behavior.

R Had any of the crimes involved multiplo’yic:.i'ml, E,
the convictions for which the sentences are to be imposed are
numerous. And number 4, there should be no double counting the
aggravating factors. Number S, successive terms for the same
offense should not ordinarily be equal to the punishment for

the first offense. And number 6, there should be an overall

outer limit on the lation of ive sentences for

multiple off not to d the .u;n of the longer terms
that could be imposed for the 2 most serious offenses.
Although Mr. Scabone’'s offenses may be construed as
being committed so closely in time and place as to indicate a
single period of aberrant behavior as recommended by Mr.
McLaughlin, even conceding that point, if in fact it does
exist, and I don’t concede that fact because of the time
periods in between the arrival of the separate victims into
that apartment, these circumstances are vastly outﬁighed by
the fact that these offenses involved numerous multiple
victims. And separate and distinct the acts of violence,
including what I characterize as the execution style murders of

2 totally i family bers who had absolutely no contact

with the initial dispute that arose into the stabbing of Monica
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Scabone and the passion provocation manslaughter of Mrs.

Scabone, as well as the second degree arson on the multiple
family dwelling.

What is clear is the crimes committed were
predominantly independent of one another and thoy._inv.dlvcd
separate acts of violence. And it was likewise apparent from
the trial proofs that all 3 victims were fully clothed and
stabbed to death individually at different times as they
entered the apartment. The fire was then set after all of the
deaths had been completed to conceal the evidence and to assist
Mr. Scabone in making his get away.

And just because Mr. Scabone ;von: into some of the
facts, I'd like to go into some of the facts in case this does
go up on appeal.

Mr. Scabone is trying to give the impression that he

didn’t know what was going on, he panicked, he just acted

irrationally. But Mr. s:;bcnc‘ iu:m-f ‘unéuvg'h'io get his j:u'pott.

He knew enough to pack his suitcase. He knew enough to take
his t.v. set. He knew enough to get his son Tito’'s passport.
He knew enough to get up to the place of employment to get his
last pay check.

He knew enough to have his friends cover for him at
work 80 no one would be looking for him. He knew enough to
check his former travel agent to try to get the cheapest flight

out of the country. He knew enough to try to contact family
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members in Florida to see if he could try to get to Costa Rica

by gfing down through Florida.

So he was in a panic all right and showed such remorse
that 6 or 7 days later he is basically trying to date another
woman in the Square at Mexico City. And he’s deeply }'n remorse
for the loss of his family, 7 days later he’'s starting up a new
family acquaintance who he ultimately married, Mrs. Alvarado
Estevez who was here during the course of the trial. So chat's
the mind set so the Appellate Division is also aware of all of
those factors when this case goes up on appeal.

The primary criteria for the govority of punishment
obviously is the gravity of the defendant’'s crimes here. They
don’'t come any higher. We have, with the loss of 3 human
people, their lives, all their careers, everything that they
had going for them. The wounds were extensive. We saw the
doctor, Dr. Tambor, he testified that there was over 90 stab
the safety of anybody else in that building, including the
firemen or any of the other tenants. His only thought was just
to get away as clean as hc‘ could and try to get out of the
country before anyone found out what was going on.

My primary rule is as the extent of Mr. Scabone'’'s
brutality and violence rises, obviously so too should the
number of years that Mr. Scabone is locked up so he can’'t do

anymore damage to the community.
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So, it is therefore the intent of this Court by these

ive with parole ineligibility terms that Mr.
Sc:bonc be sentenced to the maximum possible sentence allowed
by the law and this is the only way that society can be
psg;cc:od and justice can be served. ¢

So, on count number 2, the purposeful and knowing
murder of Yanette Estevez, I'm committing Mr. Scabone to the
Commissioner for a term of 30 years with a 15-year period of
parole ineligibility and violent crime penalty of $30 under the
old statute. I am, on count number 3, the purposeful and
knowing murder of Norma Estevez, his mother-in-law, the woman
who loaned him money all the time so h; would utilize that
money during the course of his daily life and he paid her back
by stabbing her to ueath, he’s committed to the custody of the
Commissioner of the Department of Corrections for a term of 30
years with a 15-year period of parole ineligibility. This
sentence to -run consecutively-to count number 2. -Ancther
violent crime penalty of $30.

On count number 1, the passion provocation
manslaughter of his wife, at the time, Monica Scabone, I'm
committing Mr. Scabone to the custody of the Commissioner for a
term of 10 years with a S-year period of parole ineligibility
to run consecutive to counts 2 and 3. Violent crime penalty of
$30. And on count number 4, the second degree arson, you're

committed, likewise, to the custody of the commissioner for a
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term of 10 years with a S-year period of parole ineligibility,

to run consecutive to counts 1, 2 and 3. And violent crime
penalty $30.

Just so the judgment of conviction is clear, all

-41d

to run tive to each other. No Qqncqﬁcc is to
run concurrent. Everything is to run consecutive to each
other. Aggregate total is 80 years in prison, 40 years without
parcle. I'm committing Mr. Scabone, if he makes it through
prison, will be 80 years of age when he is released from
prison.

Mr. Scabone, there was no death penalty, just so the
family members know, that was in effect at that time.

Likewise, the sentencing statute was amended but it was after
Mr. Scabone’s date. So I know one of the family members asked
for death penalty. This is not a death penalty case.

Mr. Scabone, you've got 45 days from today’'s date to
appeal the sentence. If you can’t afford a lawyer, one will be
assigned to represent you upon application to the court free of
charge. Do you understand that you have that right, Mr.
ﬂclbono, if you want to appeal? Mr. McLaughlin has already
informed the Court that he is going to file all the paperwork
that you’re concerned about for that appeal on counts 1, 2 and
3.

MR. SCABONE: Yes.

THE COURT: You've got 336 days jail credit. There's
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no dismissal on thig account. And Mr. Scabone, just based on

the fact that a Search was done down on the jail floor today
nnd I think certain items of weapons were recovered from your
person, I'm just advising you, don‘'t make any statements, but
L'ye been informed that the Prosecutor's Office is gding to
file formal complaints against you arising out of the incidents
that occurred down in the holding cell area for this morning.

So, if we get those complaints, we can address them.
I didn’t consider them for today's Proceeding because I don't
know what they totally involve.

(The proceeding is concluded.)
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STATE V. ALBERTO SCABONE
DOCKET NO. A-2992-04T4

JUDGE CONLEY: State versus Scabone.

MR. SOFFER: Jerry Soffer, Assistant Deputy
Public Defender, for Mr. Scabone.

JUDGE CONLEY: Hold on.

(Pause)

JUDGE CONLEY: Sorry, okay.

MS. CUNNINGHAM: Assistant Prosecutor LeeAnn
Cunningham, on behalf of the State.

MR. SOFFER: Your Honor, Mr. Scabone is now
serving a sentence of 80 years, 40 without parole, for
offenses occurring in 1981, those offenses being
manslaughter, murder, murder, second degree arson. This
is an appeal of the denial of his motion to correct an
illegal sentence under Natale.

At the time of the commission of these
offenses under the Code, murder was a crime of the first
degree. But a judge had the option of sentencing for up
to 30 years, 15 without parole, or for a 30 flat.

Now, since murder was a crime of the first
degree as the statute read at the time the offenses were
committed, I would submit that the proper sentences
should have been for manslaughter instead of the ten

with five he got. It should have been a seven. Instead

J&J COURT TRANSCRIBERS, INC.




0 @ ~N o » - W N =

L
& W N B O

15

Scabone - Court 96

of the 30 with 15 he got for the two murders, they
should have been two 15 year sentences and for the
arson, instead of the ten with a five --

JUﬁGE CONLEY: You know, wasn’t this same
argument made in connection with a prior -- the 2004
motion that was denied --

MR. SOFFER: That was denied, and then this --

JUDGE CONLEY: -- by Judge Codey, and there
was no direct appeal from that, right?

MR. SOFFER: It was denied, Your Honor, yes.

JUDGE CONLEY: And there was no direct appeal
from that, right?

MR. SOFFER: as I understand it, Judge Cassini
-- this is an appeal from Cassini’s --

JUDGE CONLEY: Right, yes, but in his decision
he said, look, you raised this before. Judge Codey
denied it.

MR. SOFFER: He denied it by letter, yes, Your
Honor. But I don’t think -- I’m not sure that these
issues were precisely raised in the --

JUDGE CONLEY: Okay, all right. And he also
says in addition, you were sentenced in 1994, and the
petition then exceeds the five year statute of

limitations.
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MR. SOFFER: That is correct, Your Honor. I
believe he said that he did not have access and, you
know, the proper knowledge to do this at the time.

JUDGE CONLEY: Okay, okay. I don’t know.

This is beyond me. Why is this here?

MS. CUNNINGHAM: Good question, Your Honor. I
believe it’s here because the defendant wants to
endlessly appeal his case.

Just briefly I’1ll refer to the facts, Your
Honor, because they really should be mentioned, and then
I will discuss a procedural history.

The defendant bludgeoned his wife to death,
then laid in wait for his mother-in-law and
sister-in-law to arrive in the home. He then bludgeoned
them to death. In fact, the record indicates that all
three women were stabbed a total of over 90 times.

Then, to conceal his crime, he lit the apartment on
fire, also placing his neighbors at risk. So those are
the facts that we’re dealing with, a very horrific
crime.

The defendant then, after he lit the apartment
on fire, essentially was then a fugitive for 12 years.
He was then discovered because he then threatened to
kill his second wife, and that’s how New Jersey was able

to locate the defendant after all those years.
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Now procedurally, the defendant was then
brought to trial in 1993 --

JUDGE CONLEY: We know all of that.

MS. CUNNINGHAM: Okay. Skipping forward, Your
Honor, after the trial, the defendant appealed the
matter in his direct appeal and --

JUDGE CONLEY: We know all that, too.

MS. CUNNINGHAM: Okay, okay. Essentially,
Your Honor, what I‘m going to say is that there was a
direct appeal, there was a petition, there was a habeas,
there was a PCR. Then the defendant in 2000, as you
noted, filed before Judge Codey. Instead of taking a
direct appeal, as you noted --

JUDGE CONLEY: He tries again.

MS. CUNNINGHAM: -- he tries again before
Judge Cassini, and now we’re here. So procedurally, the
defendant is clearly barred in raising this claim. And
with respect to the merits, the argument simply doesn’t
make sense because Natale, when it was decided, was --
the Court found that it was going to apply it pipeline
retroactive.

JUDGE CONLEY: Right, right.

MS. CUNNINGHAM: In other words, the direct
appeal had to be pending at the time. And his appeal --

JUDGE CONLEY: It doesn’t apply here.
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CUNNINGHAM: -- it doesn’t apply here.

JUDGE CONLEY: Okay.

MS.

CUNNINGHAM: Thank you.

* ok ok ok W
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